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USDA OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 
iiiillllllll United States Department of Agriculture 

September 12, 2023 

Subject: Log No. 22-00074 

This letter responds to the January 20, 2022, Freedom oflnformation Act (FOIA)1 appeal to the 
Office of Inspector General (OIG) at the Department of Agriculture (USDA). On appeal, 
Inspector General Fong granted a portion of your appeal and remanded your request to FOIA 
staff for further processing. FOIA staff received the remanded request on March 1, 2022, and 
assigned it FOIA Log No. 22-00074. You requested copies of the final report, report of 
investigation (ROI), closing report, closing memo, closing letter, referral memo, referral letter 
and any other conclusory document regarding the USDA OIG investigations listed in your 
request. 

We are enclosing 62 pages of responsive records. Pursuant to FOIA, certain information has been 
redacted and withheld as it is exempt from release. Specifically, in accordance with 
5 U.S.C. § 552(b )(6) and (b )(7)(C), the names, signatures, initials, and other identifying information 
of individuals were withheld because release of this information could reasonably be expected to 
constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Exemption 6 protects information about 
individuals in personnel and medical files and similar files when the disclosure of such information 
would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Exemption 7(C) is limited to 
information compiled for law enforcement purposes, and protects personal information when 
disclosure could reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. 
Information which was provided by an agricultural producer or owner of agricultural land in order to 
participate in a USDA program was withheld under 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(3). Finally, content pertaining 
to the attorney-client privilege was withheld pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5). 

We have enclosed an explanatory sheet ofFOIA exemption explanations. Please be advised that 
we have considered the foreseeable harm standard when reviewing records and applying FOIA 
exemptions. 

You have the right to appeal this decision by writing to the Inspector General, U.S. Department 
of Agriculture, 1400 Independence Avenue SW., Whitten Building, Suite 441-E, 
Washington, D.C. 20250-2308. Appeals must be postmarked or transmitted by email no later 
than 90 calendar days from the date of the adverse determination. The outside of the envelope 
should be clearly marked "FOIA APPEAL." 

For your information, Congress excluded three discrete categories of law enforcement and 
national security records from the requirements of the FOIA. See 5 U.S.C. 552(c) 
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(2006 & Supp. IV 2010). This response is limited to those records that are subject to the 
requirements of the FOIA. This is a standard notification that is given to all our requesters and 
should not be taken as an indication that excluded records do, or do not, exist. 

You have the right to seek the assistance of the OIG FOIA Public Liaison. You can also seek 
dispute resolution services from the OIG FOIA Public Liaison or the Office of Government 
Information Services (OGIS). 

As part of the 2007 FOIA amendments, OGIS was created to offer mediation services to resolve 
disputes between FOIA requesters and Federal agencies as a non-exclusive alternative to 
litigation. Using OGIS' services does not affect your right to pursue litigation. If you are 
requesting access to your own records (which is considered a Privacy Act request), you should 
know that OGIS does not have the authority to handle requests made under the Privacy Act of 
1974. 

You may contact OGIS in any of the following ways: 

Office of Government Information Services 
National Archives and Records Administration 
{OGIS} 8601 Adelphi Road 
College Park, MD 20740-6001 
Phone: (202) 741-5770 
Fax: (202) 741-5769 
Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448 
E-mail: ogis@nara.gov 
Web: https://ogis.archives.gov 

For information about OIG, please refer to our Web site at http://www.usda.gov/oig/. Should 
you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact our office at 
(202) 720-5677. 

Sincerely, 

ALISON 
DECKER 

Digitally signed by 
ALISON DECKER 
Date: 2023.09.12 
12:26:02 -04'00' 

Alison Decker 
Assistant Counsel 

Enclosures: Exemptions sheet/documents 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to detennine i (bl(5l; (b)(?)(C) 

Ch-3320-0004 

b)(6); (b)(7)(Cl iolated the 
y ex 1 1 mg amma s wit out a 1cense an provided false 

information on (bl(5 S Department of Agriculture (USDA) Animal and Plant Health
Ins ection Service (APHIS) applications for a license. The investi ation found that 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) xhibited animals without a license on b)(6); (b)(?)(C) iled false 
statements on a lications for APHIS licenses (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

L--------------...,.,..,.,.,,.,...----
( b) ( 5); (bl(7l(Cl b)(6l; (b)(?)(Cl enied rovidin false information on (bl(6l

APHIS applications b)(5l; (bl(7l(Cl 
L-----------------------� 

BACKGROUND 

This case began after the U.S. Attorney's Office, (bl(5l; (bl(7l(Cl equested that the 
USDA Office of the Inspector General investigat (bl(5l; (bl(7l(Cl ctivities following their 
receipt of a letter from the USDA Office of the General Counsel (OGC aHeging 
violations of the AW A b (bl(6l; (b)(?)(Cl nd the animals bl(6 xhibits as 
b)(5J; (b)(?)(C) are located in (bl(6l; (bl(7l(Cl 

,,,,,_...,........,,...,,....,,...-........ ----,,...,....--,-.....,,..,.,.,,.,....,,..,.,=""'� b)(6); (b)(7)(C) s located in b)(6); (b)(7)(C) )) o which are located in the (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

FALSE STATEMENTS-18 U.S.C.1001 

MAIL FRAUD-18 U.S.C. 1341 

A review of records maintained b AP HIS showed that (bl(5l; (bl(7l(Cl as the owner of
record for b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 0 (bl(5); ederal
a Ji cations b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(3) sect 1619 AP HIS b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(3) sect 1619 2008 (Farm Bill) 

nnQ /C-=irm i:t,11\ 

bl(5l; (b)(?)(C) sent a letter dated b)(5J; (b)(?)(C) . , '1 (b)(6); (b)(7)(C); 
via facs1m1 e to 1h1111 s"'rt mm :>ooR 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(3) Sect 1619 2008 (Farm Bill) PHIS, USDA, statin 
that (b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(3)Sect 1619 2008 (Farm Bill) 

cation was correct A review o (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) pplications shows that (b)(6);• 
. • (b)(7)(C) 

c) apphcatton. 

The a plications fi (bl(5>; (b)(?)(C)
�;;-;:-,,__,.,,...,..,,,..,....-.---.....,... ........ r--1=;;".",.==-�l""'""CT-----,,:;--..,.......-;:;---.-----om the ear (6); (6); y b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 1stmg a Social Security 

r of b)(6); (b)( ) �S,�Um er JS registere to b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
L_ ___________ _ 
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(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) xhibit 1 O)}bl(5); (b)(?)(C) I social Security 
Number is bl(5l; (b)(?)(Cl Exhibit 11 ). It is notable that an Employer Identification 
Number (EIN) or Tax Identification Number (TIN) has the same number of digits but 
would be in the formad<bl(5J; (b)(?)(C) trhis number was also researched, and no such valid 
number was found . 

.... <b _l<5_ l;_ (b_l< _
7l(�c _J 

_ ___,advised that the _b/\�);,__ lications containin false statements were 
(bl(5l; (b)(?J(Cl PHIS office to (bl(5J; (b)(?J(Cl and bl(5J; (b)(?J(Cl PHIS office viar,cl<b""'J<

=

5l-;--,_ I 
,_<b _J<6_ J;_ <b_l<_?l _<c_i --------------�advised thati<bl(6l; (bl(7l(Cl I were not kept. 

ANIMAL WELFARE ACT - 7 U.S.C. 2134 

Exhibiting without a license 

The _bl(5J; __ pplications filed byl<bl(5l; (b)(?J(Cl lwere for the ears bl(5l; (b)(?J(Cl the 
(bl(5l; application was denied by APHIS. The (bl(5l; (b)(?J(Cl pplications bJ(5l; (b)(?J(Cl

)�()�(;r, Exhibits 1-6) were approved because APHIS was not aware of the false 
information on the application. l<bl(6l; (bl(7l(C) !stated that (b)(6J; (b)(?J(C) 

_...._ ___ ,----=----,,�---::--:-=:-:------,-' (bl(6l; __ a lications (b)(6J; (b)(?J(C) the false information. On b)(6l; (bl(7J(C) 
b)(5J; (b)(?J(Cl submitted b)(6); icense renewal application Exhibit 7), which was 
received b APHIS on bl(5l; (b)(?J(C) This application (bl(5J; (b)(?J(Cl and, on (bl(5l; (bl(7l(C) 
bl(5J; (bl(?J(Cl sent bl(5J; (b)(?)(Cl a letter Exhibit 13) (bJ(5J; (b)(?J(Cl of the 

\�)\�);r, for the renewal of b)(6 Jicense. On b)(5); (b)(?)(C) another letter b)(5J; (b)(?)(C)
(b)(6J; (bl(7l(C) Exhibit 14) informing (b)(5J; (bl(?)(C) license 
application. 

On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

planned to exhibit (b)(6); (b)(?)(Cl 

b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

to th (b)(6); (b)(?)(C)

, an b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

h (b)(6); 
w ere 1h,n,1r, 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) APHIS, interviewed (bl(5J; (b)(?)(CJ 
�.,,,..-,-c-=..,.,,..,..----------'-, 

b)(6J; (b)(?J(C) ho told the APHIS officials that (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
=;:;-'.,;=,.;,:,-----,..---------=�=�---,-__,J from the bJ(5l; roperty when (b)(5l; (b)(?)(Cl to be exhibited (bl(5l; (b)(?J(Cl nd 

lihiiiRl7t�#f'1:f.7\�/(:�,' -=-:::.I 
. 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) so met with b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
l.r,;:-;,;c;-:-==--------,.------.-----...__---, 

bJ(5l; who stated that (bl(5l; (b)(?)(Cl because b)(5J; (b)(?J(Cl 
h\/7\/f'"'\ 

!,,--------------J USDA license (Exhibit 15). 

On (b)(6J; (b)(?J(CJ 

that b)(6); (b)(?)(C)
etter was sent to l(bl(5l: (b)(?)(CJ 

�y APHJS b)(5J; (b)(?J(C) 

a valid license to exhibit animals (Exhibit 16). 
'---------� 
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\�)\�/;,,_, spoke with b)(5); (b)(?)(C) and b)(5l; (b and stated that �/��/;,_, 
the exhibiter; however, (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) wners of b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

then admitted that ,�1\�L, elon ed to (b)(6l; (b)(?)(C) d that (6); (b)(7)(C)
.,,...,...,,,.,.....,,�,..,.,,..,..---,.--------' 

outside were also owned b b)(5); (b)(?)(C) and b)(5 ;  l(?)(C) bserved 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) accepting (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) prepared a report regarding their inspection (Exhibit 17). 

b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

and �)\�(;,,_, t (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

in b)(5); (b)(?)(C) When (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) d b)(5); (b)C?)(C) arrived .... to-v -ie-w-th_e _ e_x_h-ib- i-t,----' 
·,.:.:.i..,..... ............ ....i::=-:.:::..L._ ___ __.,l.=.:..::.._::-=--:..:.._..::....:.....__:_:..::....:.....�.:.:...:..:...:.!...._� b)(5); (b)(?)(C) told them that b)(6); (b)(?)(C)
............ ---...... -..----:-:--r,,..,.,.,,,....,,.��----------.,--

---' 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) icense. b)(6); (b)(7)(C) said (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ut 
,.,,...,..,,,.,...,,..,..,,,,,..,.,,.,.--,----:--:-----:--:------:---' 

not with b)(6); (b)(?)(C) and (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) inspected the animals and
generated an inspection report of the violations found (Exhibit 18). 

On b)(5l; (b)(?)(C) xhibited �()�(;r.1 nimals at 
b)(5l; (b)(?)(C) 

r::-':-:"=-::--:-=c:-=---,..------
( b) ( 6); (b)(?)(C) again stated to (b)(5); Cb)(?)(C) and b)(5); (b)(?)(C) hat ,�1\�L, 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) an said that b)(6); (b)(?)(C} 

'------------------( b) ( 6); (b)(?)(C) a ain stated that b l<6l; (b)(7l(C) 
b )(6); (b )(7)(C) and r,:-b-:-:-)(6;:":'l.�(b �)(:;,;-7)�(c:e-:-)�j,-n -s - e-c-te- d

c--

t
--=-

h-e _ a_n..,...i m-a 1
,-

s - a_n_,d- t -ol
,_

d
,--, 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) license. b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and fb)(6); (b)(7)(C) lfiled a

memorandum documenting their inspection (Exhibit 19) and an inspection report (Exhibit 
20). 

Agent's Note: Videota es were made by b)(6); (b)(?)(C) f the inspections on\�!\�(;,,_ , 

�\i�\icl and b)(6); (b)(?)(C) which will be made available upon request. 

l(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) d (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) went tol(b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) which is ed and o erated by 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) d (b)(6); (b)(7 b)(6); (b)(?)(C) el 

· 

On the evening o b)(5); (b)(?)(C)

b b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

(b)(6); (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
WSS/b\/7\/C\ 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); 
for h\/7\lr.l 

i-
(b

--
)(6 

... 
);_<b_l<_?l_<

c 
.... 
) ___ __.An (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) as prepared by �\i�\icl

�()�(ir., Exhibit 22) and a receipt was generated (Exhibit 23). 
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Q 
b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

observed (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) spoke with b)(6); (b)(?)(C)

��l< PHIS license b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
n 

Exhibit 24) showing that b)(5l; (b)(?)(Cl
..,,...,...,.,,.,.....,�,..,..,,..,.�--. 

without a license. 

The facts of this investigation were presented to an Assistant United States Attorney, 
Northern District )�()�(i

r:
, who agreed to prosecute this matter. 

-4-

and 

insoection ( 
(b)(o); (b)(/J(~J 
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L-----------,;----~~~~~g~; ~~---1.t~m~a report _bl(6l; __ 

,...._ ___ ...J.-_______ __Jexhibiting 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation was conducted to detennine iffblC5l; CblC7lCCl �as involved in animal fighting in the 
area of blC5l; CblC7lCCl During this investigation, several attempts were made to engage 
)�\)�\1 regarding animal fighting, however, this investigation was unable to prove that�as 
actively involved in animal fighting. 

This case is being closed in the files of this office pending the issuance ofthis report. 

- 1 -
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b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) IIN 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) IN 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation was conducted to detennine if cockfighting was occurring at a residence located at 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) Indiana. The investigation found that several individuals were 
cockfighting at the location. (b)(6); ~, of these individuals were arrested and prosecuted on charges of 
rb)(6); (b)(?)(C) �nimal fighting, and possession of animal fighting paraphernalia. 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

PROMOTING ANIMAL FIGHTING CONTEST­

�5-46-3-9.5 

POSSESSION OF ANIMAL FOR FIGHTING - ICC 35-46-3-8 

POSSESSION OF ANIMAL FIGHTING PARAPHERNALIA-JCC 35-46-3-8.5 

Onl(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) I a search warrant was served at the above referenced location.
seized, along with cockfighting paraphernalia b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
cockfighting b)(6); (b)(?)(Cl were 

,___ ___________________________. 
also seized. 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) irds that b)(6); (b)(7)(C) wns (b)(6); 
• lh\/7\tr\ 

oes not fight birds. _ 
acknowledged the fighting paraphernalia was 

On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) dmitted (Exhibit 3) that all the birds at the residence 
belonged to (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) aid the birds are not used for fighting. 

'-----------� 

- 1 -
 

g 

On b)C5); (b)(?)(C) the Re · ent was contacted b b)C5); (b)C7JCC) 

,b)(6J; (b)(7J(Cl of the CbH5J; Cbl(7)( ) artment -~)c=~--.:----o-ss"'7.ib;-;l;-e-----' 
cockfi hting activity at a residence located Indiana. 
\~!\~!~r, stated (Exhibit 1) that ""b"""')(6.,,.,.)...,; (b..,..)(=7)..,.,(C""")--==============,!__---,_ ad visited 
the property b)C5); (b)(?)(C) ~!\~tr, ting. 

j 

~ -blillL birds were 

I 

'------------.---'~ ~ 
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On (bX5); (b)(?)(C) dmitted (Exhibit 4 that all the birds at the 
residence belonged to b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and that b)( aid betwee b)(5); (b)(?)(C) or each bird. 
All the birds were purc':-h-a -se-d=-r.(�b)�(6�);�(b':'l!)(7�)(

:,:o

c
:""

) __ .__ __ ......_.....__--, f each bird (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) he bird's 
l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) )dvised that b)(6 ); (b)(?)(C) ttends cockfights in (b)(6); but Rlim6

b)_( does
. - fh\(7ltr.\ l§t_J not participate. 

lffiii6r-l..-;;.;:;;--;;-;:;:;.,;r.;.,:r--------------' and f b )(6); (b )(7)(C,

On (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) ndfbl(5); (b)(?)(C) �ere charged=w-.=--ith==---, 
possession o nimal fighting, and possession of animal fighting paraphernalia. (b)(6); (b)(7J(Cl 
r;;:-;;:�==____. ......... 4-'-'-....... b)(6l; (b)(7)(C) as charged with animal fighting and possession of animal fighting parap erna ta 
(Exhibit 5).

On (b)(5); (bl(7l(C) and (bl(5l: (b)(7)(C) th pleadedr,:--:-;::� 
guilty to Possession of an Animal for Fighting. (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) as sentenced to b���ir.
����� incarceration b)(6�;r., uspended) and��/\�L, probation. (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) was 
sentenced t (b)(6); incarceration e )(6); �ays suspended) and b)(6); robation. 

lh f7\lr'-\ \n\l h" \tr"\ 

Onl<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) pleaded guilty tol(b)(6J; (b)(7J(C) I 
Promoting an Animal Fighting Contest, Possession of an Animal for Fi htin Contest, and 
Possession of Animal Fi hting Paraphernalia. fi>l<5llwas sentenced to �;)�\i l incarceration ID,ears 

ded) (b)(6)· b · suspen an fblf?l<Cl ro at1on. 

• • • • • 
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Ch-3330-00 I 3 

SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation was conducted to detennine if dog fighting and/or bird fighting was occurring in 
b )(6); (b )(7)(C) 

The investigation, which was conducted 'ointl with the bl(5J; (b)(7J(C) Police 
Department @>D), has identified an bl(5l; (b)(7)(CJ ho is ~~1~r~. irds for the ose of 
fighting and is also involved in the fighting of birds. The investigation also found a bX5J; (b)(7)(Cl 

located in ICbJ(5J; (bJ(?J(C) ~here bird fighting is occurring. Future work on this part of the 
investigation win be conducted under OIG case number Ch-3330-0021. 

This investigation also resulted in the service of a search warrant and the subsequent arrest o )~!~l;r, 
individuals on b)(6); (b)(7)(C) for their participation in a dog fight. Charges have been filed in 
(b)(6); (bJ(7)(CJ d trail dates are pending. Future work on this part of the investigation 
will also be conduct under 010 case number Ch-3330-0022. 

- 1 -
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Ch-3330-0014 

SYNOPSIS 

Investigation conducted under the Michigan Dog Fighting Survey (Ch-3330-0007) has identified 
numerous suspected dog fighting subjects and people of interest for sponsoring and promoting dog 
fighting. 

1nfb)(5); (b)(?)(C) lthe USDA-OIG along with state and local a. encies, initiated an investigation 
concemin alle ations of organized dog fighting in �\i�\/Cl 

This investigation was known asb)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

Agents of USDA-OIG along with �()�(r
r.
, oun Animal Control and the (bl(5); ount

Prosecutors Office, developed an informant (b)(5); (b)(?)(C); (b)(7l(D) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 

The six month investigation into[b)(5); (b)(7l(C) �esulted in numerous undercover operations to 
include the purchase of a fighting dog and participation in a dog fighting match. The investi ation 
revealed an extensive underground dog fighting and gambling organization operating in )�()�(r

r., 
which fought American Pit Bull Terrier (APBT) dogs. 

CONSPIRACY TO SPONSOR AND PROMOTE AN ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE -
7 U.S.C. SECTION 2156; 18 U.S.C. SECTION 371 

BUYING, SELLING, DELIVERING. OR TRANSPORTING ANIMALS FOR PARTICIPATION 
IN ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE-7 U.S.C. SECTION 2156(b) 

SPONSORING OR EXHIBITING AN ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE -
7 U.S.C. SECTION 2156(a) 

PROMOTING AN ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE-? U.S.C. SECTION 2156(c) 

individual workin under the b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 
b)(6); 

- 1 -
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g g 

,------r----L...5 _tv __ -----T"""_1_"-" ~'-'Cl _t ____Jr 

I! 

• (b)(6); (b)(?)(C); (b)(7)(0) 

b)(6); 

g direction of RA f 



On ��(i�(i��><7>(C); Ian individual working under the direction of RAl(b )(5); (b )(7)(C); (b )(7><0 >
�b )(6); (b )(7)(C); (b )(7)(D) 
,,,,.(b.,.,

)(6
=
);
...,,
(b

....,.
)(

=
7)
.,.,,
(C

:-:--
); _(b _)(7_)(_D) _____ ,--_____ _,WaS f b )(6); (b)(7)(C)

kb)(6); (b )(7)(C) I 

Ch-3330-0014 

On (b)(5 >; (b)(?)(C) ,�/\�\,_ tate of Michi · .,,.,..,.,.,..a-�-'-, arrants were served simultaneously on the 
residences of b)(5 >; (b)(7)(C) 

_..,,.,.��"'=' ..... - · dence of animal fighting was obtained at
all �1\�/;,, ocations to include the seizur ��-,____, erican Pit Bull Terriers. Interviews were 
c nducted on b )(5); (b )(?)(C) Exhibit 1 1t 2) at their respective residences. · 

6); (b )(7)(C) was also interviewed (Exhibit 3) ��;_-__ .., 
ace o residence. b )(6); (b)(7)(C) )(6); (b )(7)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
._ ____________ __. 

On rb )(5); (b )(?)(C) lwas interviewed (Exhibit4) at the \�/\�/;,_, ounty Jail in )�()�(,r, 
Michigan. Prior to the interview,\�/1�1,r, as advised o (b )(5 'randa Rights whic (bH6 aived both
verbally and in writing (Exhibit 5). Following the interview, �()�(;r , ave a signed sworn statement 
(Exhibit 6) o�ccount of the circumstances surrounding this case. 

Onfb )(6); (b)(7)(C) pnd )�()�(;r, ere indicted before a Federal Grand 
Ju in the Eastern District of Michi an 
for b )(6); (b )(7)(C) 

Exhibit 7). Subsequent federal arrest warrants were issued 
dfb )(6); (b )(7)(C) !for the above listed charges.

On fb ><5>: (b )C7><C> IP lead guilty before U.S. District JudgejCb><5>; (b)(7)(C) 
District of Michigan, to all counts listed in the indictment. 

!Eastern

onfb><5 >: (b)(7><C> lplead guilty before U.S. District Judge �()�(b
�b)(6); (b )(7)(C) I Eastern District of Michig an, to all counts listed in the indictment. 

Sentencing fo�(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) lis scheduled forl(b )(5 >; (b )(?)(C) 

�1\�/;,_, is sche..__d
_
u-=--

le
---:d---:

ti
:-otj--;;<b;,,;=)(;;;':'6>=;;; (b;,,;=)(;;;,;,7>,;,;;;(c,;,=> ====ti

I Sentencing for 

Subsequent to the defendant's plea agreement, the American Pit Bull Terriers seized in this case 
have been forfeited to the government. Final decision of the American Pit Bull Terriers is 
forthcoming pending a final veterinary review and evaluation. 

• • • • • 
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Ch-3330-0015 

SYNOPSIS 

Our investigation conducted under the Michigan Dog Fighting Survey (Ch-3330-0007) identified 
numerous individuals suspected of dog fighting in thel\�/\�i'.�. !Michigan area. 

1nfbl(5); (b)(? )(C ) !united States Department of Agriculture, Office of Inspector General'r::-:-,:-::-:---::-:-==-, 
lnvesti ations along with state and local agencies, initiated an investigation concerning (bl(5); (b )(?)(C) 

(b )(5); (b ) (?)(C ) Ch-3330-0015). 

(b )(6); (b )(? )(C ); ( b )(?)(D ) 

The investigation o �<b ... l(.,.6 ),..; <_bl_<7_l<C...,).-----�ullimately resulted in a cooperating witness attending a 
d fi h. h. (b)(5) M" h' og 1g tmg mate m rh,mir, 1c 1gan. 

In b )(5l; (b )(?)(C ) tate warrants were issued fo (bH5l; (b )(?)(C) 
(b )(6); (b )(? )(C ) and l(b )(6 ) ; (b ) (? )(C) residen�c-e-. -D-ur_i_n_

g
-th_e_s_e_a-rc-:-h-w_a _rr_a-nt_a_t

""'b...,..,)(
""
6)-:; (�b )""'(?""'

)(C"'")
--, 

residence, several dog fightingl(b )(6 ) ; (b )(?)(C ) �raining equipment, and (b )(6 ); (b)(? )(C ) 

j(b )(6 ) ; !was seized. 

MCL 740.49a PROMOTING ANIMAL FIGHTING 

MCL 750.49b A ITENDING AN ANIMAL FIGHT 

On )�()�()�� )(? )(C); an individual workin under the direction of Re ortin RA (b )(6); (b )(?)(C ) ;
/h\17\/n\ 

(b )(6 ) ; (b )(?)(C ) ; (b)(? )(D) 
ocauon, our (b)(6); (b )(?)(C ) ; (b )(? )(D) 

Agent's Note: l(b )(6); (b)(? ) (C ) land �;;�;1ci are the subjects of a separate dog fighting investigation
(Ch-3330-0014 ). 

- J -

nd a search warrant was also 
and animal fighting were obtained 

-------------

1ghting dogs, 
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Ch-3330-0015 

0 fb)(B); (b)(?)(C) lE h.b. 2) 1 d ·1 · (b)(B) 
c· · c d. n

._ 
_________ __, x 1 It p ea gm ty 1 rh,17,1r.1 

ounty 1rcutt ourt to atten mg 
an animal fight and additional animal fighting counts listed in the infonnation. 

Qnrb)(6); (b)(?)(C) l(Exhibit 3) plead guilty in �\��\b 
counl of animal fighting. 

On b)(B); (b)(?)(C) nd (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) Exhibit 4 & 5) were sentenced i )�\i�\1 Judicial
Circuit Court ,�1\�L, ounty Michigan, by,�!\�?;,.,, ounty Circuit Court (b)(6l; (bl(7l(C) 
(bl(6l; (b)(?)(Cl as sentenced to (b)(6l;,�, upervision bl(6l; (bl(7l(Cl b)(6l; (b)(?)(Cl 
probation, and fines o (b)(B); (b)(?)(Cl as sentenced to �()�(iri 
(bl(6l; robation and fines o b)(B); 

t h\/7\/r"\ 

Subsequent to the defendant's sentencing, the dogs seized in this case were forfeited to )�()�(iri 

County Animal Control. 
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Ch-3330-0016 

SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation which was conducted ·ointly with the ~!)~(;,.-, ounty Sheriff's Office (IT}:SO), 
identified b)(5), (b)(?)(C) ocated in ~!)~(,r, Illinois where bird fighting took place. 

onl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) lusDA OIG Agents b)(5); (b)(?)(C) ssisted in the raid 
of a cockfight in ro ess which was staged at b)(5); (b)(7)(C) llinois. Approximately~~/\~/:~ I 
people were (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) o attend the cockfight, but most were able to flee prior to law ~----~ 
enforcement's arrival. Thef~1\~L, pf the property was charged with unlawful (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

and making a site available for animal fighting. Both of these state charges are felonies. \~/\~/:,~, 
other people apprehended by law enforcement officers were arrested on state felon char es of 
attendin an animal fight. Several items were seized, includin...,._b_l<6

_>; .... <b,...,l(7..,.,,><.,...c .,,..> ,.,,,,..,.,,._........-----' 

b)(5); (b)(7)(C) syringes, and metal claws used by birds while fighting. b)(5); (b)(7)(C) birds were 
euthanized on site. 

There are no further investigative leads in this matter. 

***** 
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Ch-3330-0017 

SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was developed through the Michigan Dog Fight in Surve Ch-3330-0007), and 
identi fied a suspected dog fighter and breeder of fight ing dogs in b)(6); (b)(?)(C) ichigan. 

This investigation disclosed thafbl(5); (b)(?)(C) �ossessed, bought, sold, and bred Pit Bull 
dogs for fight ing purposes in which gambl ing took place on organized matches. 

Inl(bl(5 l; (b)(?)(Cl µSDA-OIG personnel along with state and local a enc ersonnel executed a 
state search warrant at the residence of b)(6l; (b)(7)(C) b)(5 J; (b)(?)(C) ichigan. Evidence 
obtained in this search warrant consisted of,�/\�\�, it Bull dogs bearing :fighting scars. Further 
evidence obta ined consisted of dog fighting publications, dog fight ing rules, contracts for dog 
fighting matches, photographs, and electronic media. 

Onfbl(5 l; (b)(?)(C) la state arrest warrant was issued for ..... l<b _l<
5
_ l;_ <b_J< _7l _<c_J ___ __.!for animal fight ing and

cruelty to animals. 

MCL 750.49-A ANIMALS - FIGHTING 

MCL 750.49-C ANIMALS -FIGHTING ANIMALS/EQUIPMENT 

MCL 750.504C ANIMALS -ABANDONING/CRUELTY TO 4-10 ANIMALS 

On b)(6); (b)(7)(C)
(b)(5); (b)(?)(Cl contacted the (bl(5 J; (b)(?)(Cl ounty Animal Control and advised that bl(5 l; (b)(?)(C) as 
en a ed in animal fi ting and treatinaogs inhumanely.l(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) �tated that (b)(6); 
(b)(5 J; (b)(?)(C) ogs on the prop that were used for fight ing purposes. (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
stated (b)(5 J; (b)(?)(C) ought dogs on (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) at an unknown location. b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(?)(C) Jaw enforcement ersonnel to conduct a search o�roperty (Exhibit 
1) located at b)(5 J; (b)(?)(C) Michigan. 

Cont inu ing on this date, USDA-OIG agents along with (bl(5 l; (b)(?)(C) ounty Animal Control personnel
responded t b)(6); (b)(?)(C) pon arrival, A ents found nobod at the residence; however, 
approximately ;bl(5 it Bull dogs were cha ined u (b)(5 J; (b)(?)(C) the house. The dogs 
were cha ined up b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
fbl(6); (bl(7)(C) �!r-e-ma--.-in-te

_
n

_
an-ce_o..,,.f ""'fi...,gh,....t..,..in

_
g

_
d..,..o

_
g

_
s

_
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Ch-3330-0017 

� .!:-',.,,l(6,.,...J;-::-(b=l(7=l<=c,-J -------------,-_____ __,I refused to fbl(6); (b)(7)(C) 

�)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

On (b)C5>; (b)(7)(C) a state search warrant was executed at the residence of b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
,..____....,,..�---.-----' 

b)(6J; (bl(l)(Cl Michigan. Evidence obtained in the search consisted on �!(�!;,..,, it Bull 
dogs, bearing scars and marks consistent of fi hting dogs. Further evidence obtained consisted of 
do fi htin b)(6); (bl(7l(Cl Pit Bull registration certificates (Exlubit 5 �1�1i�, 
b)(6); (b)(?)(CJ Exhibit 6 do fi htin bl(5l, (bl(7)(C)

ssociated with do A b)(6); (b)(7)(C) )(6); 

was seized �!�!(,.., , (b)( ; Exlubit 7) b)(6l; (b){7J(C)
.,,...,...,,�--:-==""'"""""'------------t------,------,-----

b)(6); (bl(7l(C) A photo log was created and all evidence seized was photographed 
L...-----------� 

in place (Exhibit 8). A copy of the warrant and items seized (Exhibit 9) was left at the residence. 

from the house an ); < (Cl stated b)(6l eceived a call from (b)(6J; 
b)(6) ; (b)(7)(C) dvis ·
b)(6); b)(6); (b)(7)(C) '--......,..------,--o-r-:-k-sr;:-(b":":'.)(6;:":'

)
;-::
(b�)(

;,;;7)
:;;
(C::-:-

)
---------------------;

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) d b)(6); (b)(7)(C) t at b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ); (b){7)(C) 
bJ(5l; (bl(7l(Cl enforcement arriving with a search warrant. b)(5J; tated bl< 5>; (bl(?J(C) 

i�l�n and stat bl(6l; (bl(7l(Cl wing day. 

On (b)(5J; (b)(?)(C) a state search warrant was issued for �1�1�N pomputers turned over to law 
enforcemen b)(5J; (b)(?)(CJ e computers were sent to the OIG-NationaJ Computer Forensic 
Division for examination. 

On l(bl(5); (b)(?)(C) �as re-interviewed by reporting agent as to �bl(5 revious
statements. A Sworn Statement (Exhibit 11) was completed and signed by (b)(6); (b)(?J(Cl 

Onl<bl<5>; (b)(7)(C) � state arrest warrant was issued forl{bl(5l; (b)(?J(C)
fighting and cruelty. 

unts of animal 

This case has been accepted for prosecution by ther
b)(6); (

b)(7)(C) �unty Prosecutors Office. 

***** 
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Ch-3330-0018 

SYNOPSIS 

An investigation conducted under the Michigan Dog Fighting Survey (Ch-3330-0007) has identified 
a suspected dog fighter and breeder of fighting dogs inl\~/\~/~,,_, t'Aichigan. 

This investigation disclosed thatfbl(5); (b)(7)(C) ldid possess, buy, sell, and breed Pit Bull 
dogs for the use of fighting purposes in organized matches. 

In b)(5); (b)(7)(C) he USDA-OIG alon with state and local agencies, executed a state search warrant at 
the rest ence o b)(5); (b)(7l(Cl ·n(~!\~(;,.., , Michigan. Evidence obtained in this search 
warrant consisted of ~!\~(;,..,, it Bull dogs bearing scars indicative of dog fighting which were 
chained in a manner consistent with fighting dogs. Further evidence obtained consisted of dog 
fighting j<bl(6l; (b)(7)(Cl ~og fighting rules, dog fighting training equipment, photographs, and 
electronic media. 

On fbl(5); (b)(7)(C) ~as arrested on charges of animal fighting and 
possession of fighting dogs in violation of Michigan penal code MCL 750.49. 

Onfb)(6); (b)(7)(C) lpled guilty to breeding/selling of fighting dogs and distribution 
of a controlled substance. 

On b)(5); (b)(7)(C) as sentenced to prison for a term o (bl(5l; (bl(7l(C) ears for 
a controlled substance charge, and a term o b)(6); (b)(7)(C) o b)(5l; ears or an ammal fighting 

h \/7 \/ 

charge. 

MCL 750.49-A ANIMALS - FIGHTING 
MCL 7S0.49-C ANIMALS - FIGHTING ANIMALS/EQUIPMENT 

ounty Sheriff's Department conducted a consent search at the residence 
ocated atl<bl(5); (bl(7)(C) !Michigan, relating tol(bl(6); (bl(7)(Cl I 

inv~e-s.,.....t1g_a....,.t_10_n_. __.-...,...........--.....,....,,t ...... e consent search were later provided to the Michigan State Police (MSP). 

On b)(5); (b)(7)(C) e rting Agent (RA) was contacted by MSP personnel regarding a suspected 
dog fighter in ,~/\~L , ichigan, who had been identified through b)(6l; (bl(7l(C) · vestigation. The 
individual, who was identified asfbl(6); (b)(7l(C) ~ad Pit Bull dogs at ~b)(6 residence and what a eared 
to be aining equi ment for those do s. Do sat the residence were controlled with (bl(5); (b)(7l(C) 
b)(6); nd were b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
h\/7\/C:\ 

- 1 -
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Continuin on this date, RA contacted b)(5); (b)(?)(C) and 
requested ,~!\~!; ssistance with a possible search warrant at b)(6); (b)(?)(C) residence. (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
advised b)(5); as available and would send law enforcement personnel in )~()~(;r, ny available dog 
fighting b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

On rb)(6); (b)(?)(C) la search warrant was executed at (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) esidence. Evidence obtained in 
the search consisted o \~!\~t-, it Bull dogs, some o which bore scars and marks consistent with 
dog fighting. A Do Addendum Exhibit 1 and sketch Exhibit 2) showing the location of each dog 
was completed by (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) Further evidence obtained included a 
medical kit containing various medical supplies, vitamins, and wound treatments. A photograph 
(Exhibit 3) depicting the medical su Hes was later taken. Further evidence included dog fighting 

l<b)(6); (b)(?)(C) [Exhibit 4) (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) Exhibit 5). All evidence seized was noted on a 
search warrant Return and Tabulation (Exhibit 6) and a copy was left at the residence. 

Continuing on this dateJ(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) h.vas arrested by Michigan State Police for possession of 
fighting animals (MCL 750.49a) and possession of animal fighting equipment (MCL 750.49c). 

Continuing on this date, .... l(b~)(6_l;_(b_H~7l_(c_) ~~---,.----------~p,mpleted a report 
(Exhibit 7) documenting the seizure of the dogs. 

On b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
750.49c) b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

PROSECUTION 

On b)(6); (b)(?)(C) as sentenced in ~b)(6~ircuit Court in )~~)~~1c:1 
incarceration o b)(6); (b)(?)(C) (b) ears for violation of MCL 750.49c 
and a term o \?/\~/'.-, to~)( years for (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

ounty for a term of 
Animal Fighting) 

.._ ______________ _ 

- 2 -
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'Ibis investigation was conducted to determine whetherfbl(5l; (bl(7l<C> I 
Illinois� committed perjury when submitting financial information to the U.S. District Court,
Southern District of Illinois, d�tial appearance after being charged in a conspiracy to 
commit unlawful activities of dog fighting. 

(Exlubit 1) is a Sentencing J ent that shows �((�(;r, led guilty to an indictment cllarging 
perjury, and was sentenced to b)C6>; Cb)(7)CC) prison and ordered to pay a !Cb)C5>; Cb)C7>CC) !The 

�
riso

jterm for the perjury charge was ordered to be served consecutively with the prison term of ,? /\�/; 
b)C6); Cb)C?)(C) n the conspiracy charge to commit the unlawful activities of dog fighting 

'JJ.n,-,L1U1..1r09, b)(6); (b}(?)(C} �------� 

Due to disclosure restrictions, additional information can not be presented in this report. 

••••• 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to detennine if various individuals violated the Animal 
Welfare Act by raising, training, and fighting gamecocks. b)(5); (b)(7)(C) ersons were cited for
misdemeanor violations of California Penal Code 597, in addition, b)(6); (b)(7)(C) of those were 
cited for felony violations of California Penal Code 182. Ultimately, a number of these 
individuals were successfulJy prosecuted. 

BACKGROUND 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

2  

r h 
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b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

DETAILS 

SECTION 182 CALIFORNIA PENAL CODE - CONSPIRACY 

SECTION 597 CALIFORNIA PENAL CODE - ANIMAL CRUEL TY 

On b)(5); (b)(?)(C) Departmen t of Animal Ser vi ce s, Officer 
�--...... -.-................................................ _____ __. (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) pro vided the following informati on in su bstan ce: 

(b)(6); (b) 

Eachl(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I 
,\�)\�Ii�, IThe e stimated 1<b)(5); (b)(?)(C) I 

��=�--------------------,-----'

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) !Mo st hadl(b)(6); (b)(7J(C) IL--------------------------1 

There was (b)(5J; (b)(?)(C) abo u t a 
=1<b -)(6

=
);- (b-)(�7) -(C

.....!

) ==�-h_i_c_h _c_o -n t-a...,...in _e _d=b..,.,)(
=
5)"""'; (b""'")(=7)=(c:-:--) -----,-S

--
u_ s_e _c t_s_ h_a_ve-be_e_n...,i

,....,

d -en_ t
_,
ified �?!\�!;,�-

lo cati on t hat also b)(5); (b)(7)(C)
L-------------------' 

3  

b)(5); (b)(7)(C) as investi ating multiple suspects for violations involving cockfighting, and 
after (bl(5); (bl(7l(C) urveillance, it was determined that these individuals were 
raising, training, and fighting gamecocks at b)(5); roperties(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
I\~)\~)~,.., lfhe property addresses wer (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
Califomi (b)(6); d b)(6); (b)(7)(C) California b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
I · ~''-.:.::" ·.:..:.th':.:..;'"~' (..Lb)-(6-) .... (b-)(7-)(-C)----..-------h-. --,h-_J . l b)(6) . 
ocat1on was e ; erty w 1c was approximate y .... ,"';,.., n size 

and contained a cockfi Within the ,.,,..,.,.,,.,....,~,.,.;:>!-'-----"'-,...._ _______________ ,...._ ____ __, 

cockfi b)(6); (b)(7)( 
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.... <b
_
J<6

_
J;

_
<b
_
J<

_
7l

_
<c

_
i ___ �_o�ver � cockfights (b )(6 ); ( b )(7) (C )

bJ(5l; ( bl(7J(Cl identified a ro .... x1-· m- a- t-el_y
....,,
(b
....,.

)(
"'"6 ,....u_ s_e -cts-/ o_ wn_ e_ r _s _th_ a_ t _c _an_b_e _ c-it_e _d

__,
or 

(bl (5); ( bl (7J(Cl obtained the suspects home addresses, photos, vehicle information, and phone 
numbers. Some of the suspects have already been convicted of cock.fighting charges and 
ma face felony or enhanced misdemeanors. l(bl(6l; (bl (7l(Cl 

I (b) (6 ); (b )( 7 )(C) 

Other agencies involved in the investigation were the County of ������ir, !Animal 
Services, District Attorney's Office, the City Attorney who will be present to cite th.,..e...,.,.,--. 
ro erty owner for code violations and serve an order for removal of all structuresJ�/\�1�"' I 

,�/\�/;,._, umane Society, the Humane Society of the United States,l<bl(5J; (b )(? )(C) Police 
Department, the Naval Criminal Investigative Service, and other agencies. 

On (bl (5l; (bl (7l(C) earch warrants were executed at (bl(5J; (b) (? )(C) 

onfbH5l; (bl(?J(Cl lwas interviewed and voluntarily 
provided the following information, in substance (Exhibit 11 ): 

l(b )(6 ); (b )( 7) (Cl �as (b )(6 ); (b )( 7 )(Cl 
.__-�--L-----'-""""'"'...,...._....., he 

da of the warrant and (bl (6l; (b) (? )(Cl ·mal Services. Whe b)(6 ); ( b)( 7 )(Cl e 
(bl(5J; ocation, Animal Services rovided b)(5J; ith a waiver sters 
(b )( 6 ); (b )( 7 )(C) had�b ) (6�oosters b )(6); ( b )(7)(C )

(b )(6); (b) (7 )(C ) lmaintaineMbl(5J; (b )(? )(C) Uocation where�bl(5l; (b)(? )(C) since 
(b) (6 ); lknows l( b )(6); ( b)(7 ) (C) to 
fk\1'7\lr-\ 

(b) (6 ); (b )( 7 )(C ) lfrom fbl(6 ); (b)( 7)(C) !approximately 
(b) (6 ); (b )(7 )(C ) lmonth on feed and purchases 
it from�b )(6); (b) (7 )(C ) llocated on �b)(5); (b )(? )(C) 
l( b )( 6 ); (b) (7 )( C ) Ion medicines.fbl(6); (bl(7 )(C ) I to f b )(6); ( b )(7J(C) I 

4  

~~ __ """""""'_.....,....____. ___ ...... PP~-- I ...... ...... ~.._______.p _______ ___,, 
arrested. ~b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

I 1 

V 

[or approximately l(til(5l. (ti)(?)(C) ~as ~~/~~~;,_, It 
--" ---'------r-~-__.__,f,\ruq- n,:~--~ 
1- n -------'---- to euthanize~roo 
I _ f 

I 

I 



( ( SF-3330-0009 

AGENT'S NOTE: 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

as shown b)(5); (b)(?)(C) rovided by )�;)�\i,., 
-----�---

�()�(ir1 (Exhibit 12) and (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) obtained by Animal Services 
(Exhibit 13). 

In reference to the (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) related (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
,.,,.._..,!,--.....,.....,.------------, 

exclusively and (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) maintained b)(5); (b)(?)(C)

between b)(6); (b)(7)(C) the ro erty (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) as owned 
by b)(6); (b)(7)(C) f 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) knew what (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(5); (b)(7)(C) maintained b)(5); (b)(?)(C) onsidered b)(5); (b)(?)(C)
�----,=�=-;:,:--;--�--------,__ __ _. 

and it was (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) roosters had b)(5); (b)(7)(C)

(b)(6); �- but!(b)( purchased them 
..,,.

b
.,...,
)(6

=
);

....,,
(b

....,.
)(

=
7)

,..,.,
(C

,..,..
) _______________ __. 

�)( purchased those roosters from�b-)(6
_
l,_(b_l(_7 l

_
(c

_
) ____ �no further information given.

(b)(5); (b)(7)(C) dmitted shi in the birds (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) 
'--..,,..,..,=-:�=--------'-"-, (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) Initially, (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) admitted t (b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) dmitted to b)(5); (b)(?)(C) stated 
......,.....,,-----:---,--------:--:-----,.,,..,..,.,,.,.....,,.,,=,-,.,,.,....---------that b)(6); (b)(7)(C) he birds. According to (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) them 

and does not fight them. 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) birds are b)(6); (b)(7)(C) by b)(6); (b)(7)(C)
.____,.,,...,..,.,,,........,,.��---,...-.,........L� 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) and rovided (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) ontact numbers b)(5); (b)(?)(C) d \�1\�1:
rives a b)(5); (b)(?)(C) e birds at b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

�l _o _c-at-io_n ___ (b-)( 6- );-( b- )( 7�)(-C-) -�p�rovided the b)(5); (b)(?)(C)
�--------' 

After the warrant,fbl( 5); (b)(?)(C) �ailed .....,(b
-
)(5_l;_(b _l( _7) _(c _) ___________ ...,.........of

(b)(5); that was takin lace between (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) or b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (No further information given) (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
/h\/7\/1.\ �--------------' 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) laimed�ever sparred or fou h b)(5); (b)(?)(C) oosters, and did not 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) spar or fight birds at (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) location. b)(5); (b)(?)(C) een to a 
cockfight anywhere (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

�---------� 

Onfbl(6); (b)(7)(C) lwas interviewed and 
voluntarily provided the following information, in substance (Exhibit 14): 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

in (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

was a b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

l._(b
_

)(6
_
l;

_
(b

_
)(7

_
l

_
(c

_
) ________ ___.I also volunteers at (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) in b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

The day of the warrant (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) the roosters had been 
euthanized (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) he (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

=:'-;���...__----------,-J (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) d )(6); (b)(7)(C) h t b)(6); 
..,,...,.,��,..,.,,..,..--.---......... -------'--.....__ _________ ....., e warran . h\/71, 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) asked (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and told (b)(6); the 

�----------------� /h\/7\/ 

5  

-I ------.--------lw b 

k 

k 

I b nn o jn ~(b)(6); . • .. , .... \/'7 \/ 

1
1------r------'--,,---------'-----=d _______ ------=-lto b)(5l 

. ~ ~ 
f.___ __ _____.~ 

n K l<>n I 

i(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) f 
I 

gp 

--f 

.I w nl I k:alle .,,...~b----------,-~---.,...~ ...______, 

I LJ 
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(b )(6); (b )(?)(C) 

as a (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) as known (b)(6); (b)(?)(C)
._,.._...,.... ___________________ _. _____ � since (b)(6); (b )(?)(C) afte r b )(6); (b )(?)(C)

own onl to (b )(6); (b )(?)(C) 

�in_tr_ o_d_u_c_e�<b
_l<

5
_l
;_(

b
_l<_

7
l _<c_l _________ �_at_th_at_l_o _c _at_i o_n�since approximately 

(b )(6); (b )(?)(C) S the (b )(6); (b )(?)(C)
,__ ____________________ ...--__ __, 
the property and (b )(G); (b )(?)(C) approximate] b)(G); (b)(?)(C) 

..,,.(b..,...,)(6=)
..:
; (b,...,.)(.,;7 ):..,,(C,..,..)

...:......_--==========::::;-e -c-e1=-· v
_
e

_
a
_
r_,ecei t. b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

urch ased the feed (b)(G); (b)(?)(C) the feed b 
(b 

l(G); (b 
l(?)(C) fo...,r ,....\b

..,.
)(6

,.,....-

i -rd-s-t;. ;:-;� \""i�n(; -d -id
_
n

_
o

_
t

_
u

_
s

_
e....,<b

,...,.)(=5),....; (
,,..,
b l

"""

<7,,...,)(C=)
------'-=-=-c:...:c....:::=...r....w..\{DI£:..1J

(b)(6); (b )(?)(C) along w i th app r oximately (b )(6); (b)(?)(C)
...__ _____ __, �---------' 

The bird b )(G); (b)(?)(C) a ised h ad b )(6); (b )(?)(C) 
..,,...,...,,,..,......,,--:-=-,-,t,-----�-, 

b )(6); (b)(?)(C) 

(b)(6); (b )(?)(C) did admit to b)(6); (b )(?)(C) 
..._
th

_
e-r,:-;b)""(6,.,...);7(b""")(7""")(""C.,....) 

----� �----------------� 

(b)(6); (b )(?)(C) liked s the birds and did so a roximately (b)(6); (b )(?)(C) t the 
(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) location. (b)(6); (b )(?)(C) knew fi hting 
the birds was ille al, and (b)(G); (b)(?)(C)
(b )(6); (b )(?)(C) 
...__ ____________ _. It was a (b)(6); (b)(?)(C)

AGENT'S NOTE: (b)(G); (b)(?)(C) as shown the ictures taken from b)(G); (b)(?)(C) at
...,,..,..,.,,.,....,,..,..,,,'"="'-.......................... _____, ......... =.... .......... (b )(6); (b )(?)(C) and of the evidence obtained during the �--,-

h
----...,,( b...,...)(6=-) 

---.-. _. l d 
. f�b )(G) L . b" d searc warrant a ,,,_,,-,.,�..--, o me u e a  picture o p,_,m:�, i::;parnng 1r s

(Exhibit 15). 

(b )(G); (b)(?)(C) dmitted to sparring birds with (b)(G); (b)(?)(C)
.,,...,...,.,..,......,,-o-=�--------,r-------.,,-,,,,,,,....-----'1 

and identified\�?\�\..--
, as the person Lb

_l<6_l;_(
b
_l< _

7
l _<C_l __ __,.,,.=....,,...,.=,,,.....,i::::::....=....c..:ec::..rs::...:o:.::.n��(�\�:.l!,(;,--□,....____J 

(b)(G); (b)(?)(C) The birds were sparred using...,<b.,,...)<
5,...,.,l,,,....<b...,,.)(..,...,7 )=-<c.,.,,) ------1hrough 

(b)(G); is when they spar the birds The birds do not spar (b )(5); (b)(?)(C) because 
��v 

ey b )(6); (b )(?)(C) 

AGENT'S NOTE: (b)(G); (b)(?)(C) as shown (b)(G); (b)(?)(C)

(b)(6); and b)(6); (b)(?)(C)
/b\/7\/C\ 

(b)(G); (b)(?)(C) related that (b)(G); (b )(?)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

"d d b  b)(G); 
TOVl e Y h\/7\lr:I 

Services. 

and (b)(6); (b)(?)(C)

e 
on the Animal 

(b )(G); (b)(?)(C) o Last Name Given b)(G); (b)(?)(C) 
(b )(G); (b)(?)(C) o Last Name Give (b)(G); (b )(?)(C) 
(b)(6); (b )(?)(C) 

6 

and 

 

birds were dead and that! 
l(b)(6); (b )(?)(C) fi-i 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) k_n 

G 

,I I 
[ Q ~ I 

Q I v l(b)(6); I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
LP LJ I had a 

J ~ r [ 
I ~ 

n~rrmP nn ~ 
Q 

g 

kv n ~ 
~ 

L 
K 

____ -lobtamed by Ammal 

h 
r'::-(b"'"")(6«-"");..,,..(b.,..,,)(7=)(c=)-----,--i-de- n- t1-. fi-e-d..,,.(b"""')(6"""");""""(b"""')(7"""')(=c)---------..----~ 
.____--~-~____, 

There were a 7)(C) 
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.,_
b
_
)(6

=
),

_
(b

,...,.
)(

=
7)

,...,.
<C

=
)

-
_.._r_,ovided b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ell number as j<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) land �b)(6) I 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) cell number as (b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 
claimed that (b)(B); (b)(7)(C) birds and that (b)(B); (b)(7)(C) icks up 

the birds. (b)(B); (b)(7)(C) has b)(B); (b)(7)(C) and (b)(B); (b)(7)(C) has seen ,;�, 
_
__ __., _______ __. __ ....--__ _. b)(6); (b)(7)(C) birds. 

Onj<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) lwas interviewed 
and voluntarily provided the following information, in substance (Exhibit 16): 

held the b)(6); (b)(7)(C)
---------,,----,,.......,.,....,.._.,..... _________ ..____, 

was (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) as worked for (b)(B); (b)(?)(C)
b ( ); ( )(7)(C) worked at b)(6); (b)(7)(C) s a (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

1-b -)(B-);-(b-)(
=7)�(C�)----�

an
-d

_
i
_
s _,responsible for b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

'--------� 

l�
b)(6lwas cited by Officers l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) land fbl(B); (b)(?)(C) 

�or �!��!, counts of
fighting birds and �ounts of possession of owning fighting birds. 

AGENT'S NOTE: �b)(6); (b)(7)(C) lwas shown an rb)(6); (b)(7)(C) lof (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

obtained from Animal Services. 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

indicated and b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

b check and made the checks out to b)(6); (b)(?)(C)
,...._ _______ __, 

was not given a recei (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) the 
property b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ew (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) spent approximately b)(6); (b)(7)(C) n feed, whic 

from (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) in b)(6); (b)(7)(C) very (b)(6); (b)(7)(C)
'--------� 

since 

but 

This was the (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) irds in the United States. All the birds (b)(B); (b)(7)(C)

"'"(b
.,...
)(6=);

...,,
(b

..,..)(
=7)

""'(c
,.,..
)-�-------,..tr-an__,sferred �;i�\ir., oosters �b-)(5..,..>;"""(b,.,..)(7..,,.)(..,.,C=) �--.f which .?!\�\

(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) Currently,fbl(6�as these birds located in b)(B); (b)(?)(C)
.__ _______ _. 

When b)(6); (b)(7)(C) own b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

for the birds. (b)(B); (b)(7)(C)

and b)(6); (b)(7)(C) he birds. (b)(6); < 

o care 
o care for the birds 

o care for the birds. 

Most of the bird�wned had thei (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) The ones thatl(b)(B); (b)(7)(C) I
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) hat way. The roosters b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ecause the would 
fight, but not because b)(B); (b)(?)(C) The birds are (

b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) he breeds of birds��)( owned were b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) .__ ___________ _, 

7  

~ b f [... 

~ I 
f 

I 
I 

r~1~> ~ 

~b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

r~~i~;c6 I 
L-f -----.------,-'~ L---1 -------' 

f 

1h 

D --------------

b I d ~ ~ 6 
- t I 

r ~ ~ 
~-d l(b)(6)" ~ ~1 not eai,~"~,:~, 

r ~ b){7)(C) ~ 
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(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) fight the birds and (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) s ar birds. 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) hts birdsl(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) lhad ab . b 7 c 
b)(6 had ca ) knows fi --�..,...--.-.___,--,-.......,..ta_,.t-es-

1
�s

--� 

illegal, bu l 

,_b _)(B_);_(b_)(?_ )(_
C�) ---� irds anywhere and does not know ..... rb _)<6_>;_(b_)< _7><_C _) ________, b)(6); 

1,...\17\fr-\ 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
The name (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

are beneath (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

refers to (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) declined to be interviewed . 
.__ ______ _. 

associated with b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

and 

rb)(B); (b)(?)(C) pistrict Attorney's Office has accepted this case for prosecution.�b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 
persons were cited for misdemeanor violations of California Penal Code 597, in addition, 
fb)(6); (b)(7)(C) 1were cited for felony violations of California Penal Code 182. Ultimately, a 
number of these individuals were successfully prosecuted. 

8  
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SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation was opened to detennine if (b)(5); (b)(7)(C)
L--------...-::--:-,=--,:-:-=,-,.,,,,,.---,c-----' (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) old and shipped fighting roosters to other states and (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) The 

investigation resulted in a search warrant that was executed in b)(5); (b)(7)(C) at b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

\�!\�!:-, ontraband and other cockfighting items were seized durin the warr nt. In b)(5); (b)(7)(C)

(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) and co-defendant b)(5); (b)(7)(C) 
L_ _________________ __J 

pled no contest ount of California Penal Code Section 597i, Possession of Animal 
Fighting Instruments, 

BACKGROUND 

The Animal Welfare Act Provisions on Animal Fighting 

The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal and Plant Health Inspection 
Service (APHIS), has general enforcement responsibility for the Animal Welfare Act (A WA), 
Among many other provisions, the AW A prohibits individuals from sponsoring or exhibiting an 
animal in a fighting venture, such as dog or cockfighting, if the animal was transported across 
State lines or in foreign commerce for that purpose, The law prohibits selling, buying, 
transporting, or delivering an animal in interstate or foreign commerce for animal fighting. 
Cockfighting and dogfighting is illegal in all states. 

DETAILS 

TITLE 7 UNITED STATES CODE 2156(b) 
BUYING. SELLING, DELIVERING, POSSESSING, TRAINING, OR TRANSPORTING 

ANIMALS FOR PARTICIPATION IN ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE 

CALIFORNIA PENAL CODE SECTION 597j(a) 
PROBABLE CAUSE, POSSESSION AND TRAINING OF A BIRD FOR A FIGHTING 

EXHIBITION 

CALIFORNIA PENAL CODE SECTION 597i 
UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OF COCKFIGHTING INSTRUMENTS 

In (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) the USDA, Office oflns ector General OIG), received informa ion from 
=(b ..... )(5

.,,.

);....,,(b
..,...,

)(
=7)

""'

(c
.,...

) --.--o ..... unty Sheriffs De ut b)(5); (b)(7)(C) Deputy b)(5); (b)(?)(C) that ,�/\�t
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) address b)(5); (b)(7)(C) California (CA) was listed in (b)(6); ockfighting ' > /h 117\/ 

websites b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and b)(6); (b)(7)(C) The websites mentioned that fighting 
birds (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) from b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

I D ty b)(6); (b)(7)(C) . t' t' rt (E h' b't l D t (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) d h b)(6); n e u mves I a 1ve re o x ,,.cl :.,;;,1�'-!-:' �e
-F--

u ____ ..__ ____ �t_a,te t e b\/?\/C
(b)(5); 1'nk showed (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) roosters (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) Another /h\/7\/r\ 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) showed \�1\�L, ooster (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) Based on Deputy 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) raining and experience, these were indicative of cockfighting. 

In a website addressed as b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b )(6); (b )(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) discovered
(b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); 
h\17\/f'.\ 

attac e t b)(5); (b)(7)(C) also mentioned that (b)(5); (b)(7)(C)
',:J_��---,----� 

fighting cocks (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) ontributo b)(5); (b)(7)(C) 
L_ ___________ ___ __, .__ ______ ____. 
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(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

contributor later b)(B); Cb)C7)CC) 
and that b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

--------------------

AGENT'S NOTE: Sparring is a brief fighting match between roosters to see if they are game 
enough, or have the tendency to fight, before they are purchased. Sparring is 
accomplished with the roosters fitted with rubber boxing boots. 

A review of another (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) revealed that a contributor, known as (b)(B); (b)(?)(C)

mentioned (b)(B); (b)(l)(C) spar roosters (b)(B); (b)(l)(C) n the 
sa · 7)(C) hat b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
fi lement used in cockfi and the roosters (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
.;:,i:;,;,:.:.;;.;.,;.g..,:;.:c=.:..:..:c:.::.:.;:.:.;c...:.:.::c.:..::...:.:.:....::..::..==.:.:=="-..;.;.;.;;..:;.;_;;_;"-'---, .... _____________ _. 
(b 

Surveillance and additional investigation revealed 1..b_l<5_>;_ <b_lC,.,,.
7l.,..,<

C
=l ...,,..,.=,,,..---.---=;;:;-;:-;�is

'-f.
l�o=ca=t=ed

=-=,
at 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) alifornia. b)(6); (b)(7)(C) (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
witnessed b)(B); (b)(?)(C) as well as 

.,,...,;,-,..,...,,,,,.,..,,....__ ___ ..---------r,;-,-,,c:---;:-:-:=,.,-----,.--------- r::-:-,,,,,.--, (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) oosters. Deputy b)(B); (b)(?)(C) estimated that there were at least (b)(B); 
,,,_,_,,,,..... _____ __, /h\/7\lr.\ 

,�/\�/( birds at the search warrant site spread b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
----------

AGENT'S NOTE: Roosters (b)(B); (b)(?)(C)
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); and b\(7)/Cl

""O�n .... C_bl _<5 _>; <_b>_<7_>cc_ >_� the OIG, thefb)(B); (b)(7)(C) �aunty Sheriffs Department and the b)(B);
w.(b,.i..)(�5>"'; ��==i. Animal Services Department executed a search warrant at b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

CA. Evidence obtained at the site included b)(B); (b)C7)(C) 
1--------'-----, L------,-----,---,-------------' (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ertaining to cockfighting. Animal Services handled the roosters and 
\�/\�\" ound at the property. 

Durin the search recent receipts for payments to b)(B); (b)(l)(C) /b)(B); (b)(l)(C) 
(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) CA were discovered. A telephonic warrant to search b)(B); (b)(l)(C) 
was subsequently obtained. rb)(B); (b)(l)(C) !were taken from b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

ite 

This investigation was presented to the United States Attorney's Office in the Central Judicial 
District of California, however, the case was declined for prosecution due fL..b _><5_> ______ _,

On (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) a misdemeanor complaint was filed againstl(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) lmd )�()�(ir, 
(b)(B); (b)(7)CC) barging them with �bl<6icounts of Penal Code Section 597j(a), Possession of a 
Bird/ Animal for Fighting. 

Onl(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) L .kb)(6); (b)(7)(C) b (b)(6)· ..__ ------------�ian<11-______ leaded no contest to /h\17\/ ount 
of Penal Code 597i Unlawful Possession of Cockfighting Instruments. Each defendant was 
ordered to serve (�\)�(;r ears probation, destroy all contraband, pay a fine and reduce their number 
of roosters to (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
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DETAILS 

This investigation was conducted to determine ifL...rb _)(5 _ J;_(b _)(_7 l _(C _) -----------,-----,--,------,----,--,-----,---' 
violated the Animal Welfare Act by attempting to smuggle gamecocks across the international border with the 
Republic of Mexico for participation in an animal fighting venture in violation of 7 USC 2156 and 18 USC 554.

According to CBP records, on b)(5 l; (b)(?)(C) entered the·us via the b)(5 l; (b)(?)(C) Port of 
En OE) at approximately _bl(6);-- in a (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) license plate 
b)(5 J; (b)(7J(C) Durin en the CBP Officer sL..ta-t-,--io_n_e"""'d-r::(b-:-:)<

"'"6)-,; (;-;-b)�(7l:-;::(c
,:-;-J

---
-r-n -ot--.ice____,d.-----m-e-:-th.-,i'n_un__.usual about the 

(b)(6); and (b)(6); (b)(7J(C) 
/h\/7\tr" 

According to the CBP report prep,.,,.ar
.;,.,
e
.,,.;;,
d

:...,,
b�O

.;:;,.;..:
ffi=--=-1c'--'e'-'-r'---

(b _l<6_>;_ <b_)< _ 7> _(c _J ---__,J�xh_;_;__i b:..:.it_;____:_,1 )�•--=-o _n.Lb_l<_5 J _; (b_ ><_ 7l�(c_> _,_,__,,,,._a_t_,
approximately �/\�/;,_, fficer (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) )(C) e (b)(6); --

l< b)(6);-- !POE. b)(6); (b)(7)(C) (b)(5 J; (b)(?J(C) to exit the 
US and enter Mexico alerted ho (b)(6); Cb)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) vehicle. · stopped (bl(5 J; (b)(?)(C) and 

1EL.r•::::..::�:;:.:.:�t!.!::o:..::d�e�c�lar,,._,.__,e. if s transporti from the US to Mexico. (b)(5 l; (b)(?)(C) 
stated ' . '-----��-__. ediatel located '-------�=�-----' with feathers 
and claws protruding out plac b)(5); (b)(?)(C) in restraints and escorted rh\11,1 to the Security Office. 

(b)(5); (b)(7)(C) rmed · b)(?J(C) hat the \re elonged to (b)(5 J; (b)(7J(C) but did not provide a 
name and said as pa1 · er bird to sm e them into (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) aid the person 
who coordinated the oper b)(7J< C> who contacted (b)(5); y radio and 

lh \/7\/ 

instructe l'k>-'L=;;;...J;? to the ; in bJ(5); (b)(?)(C) o pick up the birds, and transport them to the 
(b)(5); in o meet (bl(5J; (bl(7J(C) <

1

b
h l,(157 l; the mone when picking up the birds and was 

lh\17\lr\ 

due to re (b)(?)(C) delivery. (b)(5); (b)( a b)(6); (b)(7)(C) nl\bl(5 �erson, and stated the money 
was payment or the attempte bird smugg mg. 

Upon further inspection, the hidden comp�t contained�)( birds;lj�)(6roosters and l(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) I USDA
Veterinary Services eventually removed the�birds, of whichjbl(6 oosters were deceased. 

Onl(bl(5); (b)(?)(C) !the facts associated with this investigation were discussed with an Assistant United States
Attorne Southern District of California, San Diego, CA, who accepted it for rosecution. Special A ent 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) SAl(b)(5); -- � subsequently performed a warrantless arrest of b)(5); (b)(?)(C) d on b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

;�;;�;1r, 
a criminal complaint was filed. 

O (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) a Federal Grand Jury for the Southern District of California, San Diego, California, 
indicted (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) in a b)(6); ount indictment chargin b)(5 J; ' th smuggling gamecocks across the 

h\(7\/ h\/7\/ 

international border with the Republic of Mexico for participation in an animal fighting venture, in violation of 
7 USC 2156 and 18 USC 554. 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) b)(6) . . , ,
�b)(6); (b)(7)(C) k . b)(6) . On.__..,._.-----.,--,a h111,1r. ount supersedmg mdictment was filed on._ ____ __. hargmg h\17\/ th

smugg mg gamecoc s across the international border with the Republic of fyiexico for participation in an animal 
fighting venture in violation of 7 USC 2156 and 18 USC 554 supported by 9 CFR 91.4 and 71.1, and False 
Statements in violation of 18 USC 1001. 

onl(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) lpled guilty to unlawful exportation of wildlife in violation of the Lacy Act
16 use 3372 and 3373. 
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DETAILS 

This investi ation was conducted to determine if L..�b _><5_>;_(b_><_7>_<c_> __________ �(bl(5l; (bl(7l(Cl iolated California Penal Code 597 - Possession of Cocks for Fighting. 

On bl(5l; (b)(?)(C) ounty of l(b)(5l; (b)(?)(C) pepartment of Animal Services, Officerl(bl(5); (b)(7)(Cl
(bl(5); (b)(7)(Cl informed United States Department of A riculture USDA) Office of 
Inspector General (OIG) that Animal Services Officer (bl(5); (bl(7)(C) as investigating a 
suspect for violations involvin cockfi htin . (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) aid that \�11�1;" animal fighting warrants 
were bein served on bl(5); (bl(?)(C) and that the sub'ect of the warrants was 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C} further stated that the(�/(�\---, 
warrant was being served on (b}(6); (b}(?)(C} located at (b)(6); (b)(?}(C} 
(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) (b)(6); where b}(5}; (b}(?)(C} reeds ::oan�d�tr�auinisi:nt

.,..

hiieuiiruiiii�iru[iij-at
_
t
..,..

h-e/h\f7\tr\ ,,:: 

Onl< b)(6}; (b}(7)(C) �he b}(5); (b}(?)(C} e artment of Animal Services with the assistance of OIG,
executed search warrants at (bl(5); (b}(?}(C} CA �(\�(ir, Exhibit 1 ), (b)(5}; (b)(?}(C} (Exhibit 2), and b)(5); (b)(?}(C} A 
\�(\�(;r1 (Exhibit 3). (b}(5>; (b}(?)(C} as not issued a citation. 

The investigation was presented to the (b)(5}; (b)(?)(C} istrict Attorney's Office, wh a ce d this 
case for prosecution. On b)(5}; (b)(?}(C} a com laint was filed in the County of bl(5l; (b)(?)(C) 
Superior Court of Califorma b}(6}; (b}(?}(C) orl(b}(6} jcount of California Penal Code 
597j. Trial is scheduled for (bl(5), (b)(?)(C) 

,...._ ________, 
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A 
(b)(B); arrant wa._s -on-----.,,,b"'"')(6,,..);"""'(b"""')(=7).,..(C..,_) -----,-1-o__.cated at uJ{tiJ; {b)(rJtGJ CA 

(b)(B); Accordin to b)(6); (b)(7)(C) the (b)(B); arrant was bein served on (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) located in \~!~!i~, CA. (b)(B); (b){7)(C) aid~b-)( ...J:--e-;--;li-ev_e_d:,;;b:-;-;)(~6)-:--;; (b;:-;-)(7;::;,);-;;:(C::-;-)-.........., 

was involved in interstate/international shipment of fighting cocks. 
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SYNOPSIS 

and This investi ation was conducted to detennine if b)(5); (b)(?) (C) 
"r!:--:-,-,:-:---::--:-==-:-----------'-----(b)(6); (b) (7)(C) f b) (6); (b) (7)(C) 
'------,,,....,..,,,.,.......,,...=,-,-=------------'--� (b)(6); (b)(7) (C) intentionall b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

(b)(6); (b) (7)(C) 
subsequent destruction of�(b _)(6_ );_ (b_l(_7l _(C _) _______ __. 

This investigation did not s,�u�bs�t�an�t�ia�t�e �th�a�t!::
<b =l<5=>;= (b =H =7><=C =l ======::;-------l�an�d�l

;;:

(b

:;;:

)(6
;:;;

);
;;

(b =H7=>(=c=) :::::!,
i<b) (6); (b) (7)(C) I intentionally fbl(6); (b)(7) (C) i<b)(6); (b)(7) (C) lwith a b) (6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); 
b\/7\/C\

This investigation was conducted jointly with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). 

18 U .S.C. 43 - FORCE. VIOLENCE ANO THREATS INVOLVING ANIMAL ENTERPRISES 

1nrb)(5); (b) (?)(C) !the FBI notified the United States De artment of A . culture Office of
Inspector General, lnvesti ations Office, (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) that (b)(5); (b) (?)(C) had 
occurred in (b)(5); (b) (?)(C) ocated at b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

l(b)(6); (b)(7) (C)

1

)(6), �)(7XCJ 

On b)(6); (b)(7)(C) was interviewed 
by Special Agent (SA) (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) FBI, b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and said: 

b)(4); (b)(6); (b)(7) (C) 
b)(4); (b) (6); (b)(7)(C) 

r

l(4J (bX6J; �)(7XCJ 
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r)( 4); (b )(6 ); (b )(7XC I 

(b)(4); (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

AGENT'S NOTE: 
r
b)(4); (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

On (b)(6); (b}(7)(C) 

interv1ewe y A (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) and said: 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(4) 

b)( • b)(6)· (b)(7)(C) • b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

Te-2416-16 

as 

. believed that due · ccumng 
�L--�--------,,,--,...,..,.,......,,...,...,,,.,....--........, b)(5); (b)(7)CC) the had to be caused b b)(6); (b)(7)CC) b)C4); (b)(6);

b)(4); (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

On (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b )(6); (b )(7)(C) was interviewed b SA b)C5); (b)(7)(C) said that b)(5); (bl(7)CC) 

(b)(6); (b}(7)(C) and (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 0 b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

SA (bl(5l; (bl(7lCC) advised that afte (bl(5l; (b)(?)(C) 
�-----------------------.--------' 

on or about b)(6); (bl(7)CC) and (b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) a er the b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

l-(b -)(6-), - (b-)(
=7)-(C_) _....,..._pe-c

""T
I fie ally, b )(6); (b )(7)(C) 

had (b)(5); Cbl(7)CC) order to ,�/!�t,_,

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
p acmg b)(6); (b)(7)(C) m or er to b)(6); (b)(7)(C)

,!..-_ _!:::.J,;_;_;_.;.;__;_.;.;..;..;.;..;. _________ _i 
(b )(6); (b )(7)(C) 
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On b)(6); (b)(7)(C) as interviewed b S (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) and the
Reporting Agent (RA) and denied._b _l<5_>;_<b_ l<7_ >_<c_> __________________ 
I\�/\�!:�, I 

On b)(6); (b)(?)(C) as interviewed by SA (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) d 

Task Force Officer b)(5); (b)(?)(C) and also denied (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
�(b -)(6- );-(b-)(�7)-(C -) -------.-----� 

,...._ _____________ __. 

The RA and/or FBI agents interviewed (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

substance that b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) also said that (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

(b )(6); (b )(7)(C) 

ho said in 

The facts of this investi ation were discussed with an Assistant United States Attorney, (bl(
5); (b)C?)(C) 

District of (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) who declined to prosecute.

• • • • • 
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Te-3330-16 

SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to determine iffbl(B); (b)(7)(C) �t al., knowingly kept a 
place for the participation and observation of animal fighting, sponsored an illegal gambling business 
and moved game dog(s) in interstate commerce to participate in an animal fighting venture in )�()�(ir:, 
�. 

The investigation determined that )�\)�\cc\ d b)(B); (b)(7)(C) perated an illegal 
gambling and dog fighting venue on property belonging to b)(B); (b)(7)(C) TX. 
During the investigation, undercover surveillance video determined they perfonned acts in furtherance 
of or to facilitate a do fi tin and gambling operation. fbl(B); (b)(7)(C) 

Ib)(B); d (b)(B); (b)(7)(C) owingly sponsored and exhibited animals wherein at least one 
h\/7\tr\ 

animal was transported in interstate commerce from )�()�(ir:, o Texas and elsewhere. Additional video 
detennined that all of the above mentioned subjects were present and participated in the animal fighting, 
as well as 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

OnJ<b)(B); (b)(?)(C) Jin the United States District Court, Eastern District of Texas,l(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) �l �(��(;,...
identified subjects, as shown above, were charged in�\?!\�!'.� pount Indictment with Conspiracy; 
Sponsoring or Exhibiting an Animal in an Animal Fighting Venture; Aiding and Abetting; and Buying, 
Selling, Delivery or Transporting Animals for Participation in an Animal Fighting Venture. 

From )�i)�\cr.,
· 

subjects pied guilty and were sentenced in 
1 . ·1 . th b)(B) d t d t b)(B); nfin t mu tt 10 e ... ,m;,... was sen ence o serve ,17,1r:, emen , 

and , ��� ......... ��--------� d b)(B); (b)(7)(C) ere all sentenced in 
�()�(;r, =�..;:.,-- =�� each defendant receive )�( ears Deferred Ad.udication
Proba ��- of communi se · . On b)(B); (b)(7)(C) ederal 
Indictment was· C) )(B); (b)(7)(C) lieu of State 
prosecution. l(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

as sentenced in the o se ears proba · ;,�, fines, and 
b)(6); n restitution to the Humane S ·"""""",.,....--, United States HSUS as sentenced, in 
th; )�()�(ir: serve s probation and pa��� fines. b)(B); (b)(?)(C) ntenced in the 
(b)(�);_- ourt to se ears probation, pay==-' . es, and (b)(B); (bl(7l(C) in restitution to the HS ....,,..._.� 
b)(B); (b)(7)(C) as sentenced, in the United States District Court, Western District of Arkansas, �(;,..., 

(b)(6); �- was ordered to serve�ears probation. pay��(��(;,..., n fines, and )�()�(ir:, in restitution to the 
HSUS. 

OnJ<b)(B); (b)(7)(C) �e indictment fo�-<b _l<5_ l;_<b_l<7_ l<_c> ____ �fas dismissed.

This investigation was conducted jointly with the Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI), Missouri State 
Highway Patrol, Texas Department of Public Safety, and the HSUS. 

BACKGROUND 

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS), is 
responsible for protecting and promoting U.S. agricultural health, administering the Animal Welfare 
Act, and carrying out wildlife damage management activities. The Animal Welfare Act provides APHIS 
with the ability to regulate minimum care of wann blooded animals used in research, bred for 
commercial sale, exhibited to the public, or commercially transported. In addition, the law requires 
standards of animal care be established and enforced. 
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On or about b)(5 >; (b)(?)(C) information was received from the USDA, Office of Inspector General 
(OIG), (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) that �(��(;,--, and fbl(6); (b)(?)(C) !were participating in a dog fighting
o eration involvin numerous individuals from multiple states. Undercover investigators determined
�(��(;.--, d b)(5); (b)(?)(C) ere actively orchestrating a large-scale dog fighting venue scheduled 
fo b)(6); (b)(7)(C) on (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) property in (b)(6); 

/h\f71 

On i<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

18 U.S.C § 371 CONSPIRACY 
18 U.S.C. § 2 and 49 AIDING and ABETTING 

7 U.S.C § 2156{a){b) ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE PROHIBITION 
TEXAS PENAL CODE§ 42.10{a){3) DOG FIGHTING 

!undercover investie.ators were oresent onl<b><5>; (b)(?)(C)
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) IIX, andl(�g�\.--, l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 

loroperty in 
l Undercover

surveillance video determined thaOb)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) I b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) [Furthermore, 
additional video determined that�b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 

On b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

I 
. the (b)(6); b)(6); (b)(7)(C)
lll (b l/7)/C 

b)(5); (b)(?)(C) were charged in a �(��(; count Indictment (Exhibit 1) with 

I 
I 

Conspiracy; Sponsoring or Exhibiting an Animal in an Animal Fighting Venture; Aiding and Abetting; 
and Buying, Selling, Delivery or Transporting Animals for Participation in an Animal Fighting Venture. 

On (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) multiple Federal Arrest Warrants were executed on the aforementioned subjects b the 
FBI and USDA-OIG. During the arrests, (bl<5 >; (b)(7)(C) agreed to a consensual release of\�/\�/;,_, 
fighting dogs into the custody of the HS 1t • 

Onl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) �elinquished ownership off b)(6); (b)(?)(C) rit Bull Terriers into the
custody of the HSUS (Exhibit 3). .__ ___ _,J 

Onl<b)(5); (b)(?)(C) !was sentenced in the ��()�(ir having pied guilty to count�f the
indictment, and was ordered to servd\�/\�L, bonfinement and pay,�/\�(;,_, fines (Exhibit 4). 

Onl<b ><5 >; (b)(?)(C) I the Federal Indictments for .... fb_><5_ l;_ <b_l<7_ ><_c_> ______ _,J�dfb ><5>; (b)(?)(C)

were dismissed in lieu of prosecution by the State of Texas. 

Onl<b)(5); (b)(?)(C) lthe Federal Indictment of .... fb_l<5_l;_<b _l<7_l<C_ l ___ __,�as dismissed. �as not charged
in State court. 
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On b)(5l; (bl(7l(C) as sentenced in the United States District Court, Western 
District of Arkansas, b)(B); (bl(7l(C) aving pied guil to countlCbl(5l lof the indictment, and was ordered to

!Ttiil.. b . (b)(B) . fin d (b)(B) . . . th HSUS (E h'b' 7) serve�ears pro ation, pay 1h,17,,r, n es, an ,h,m;
,--
, restitution to e x 1 1t .

onrb)(B); (b)(7)(C) �as sentenced in the �����ir, avin led guilty to count�f the 
indictment, and was ordered to serve�ears probation and pay(�)\�t,-- , in fines (Exhibit 8).

0 b)(6); (b)(7)(C) (b)(6) �iL as sentenced in the 1h1mir:1 aving pied guilty to countfillf)f 
the indictment, and was ordered to serv ears probation, pay ��(��(r

r:
, in fines, and 1Cbl(6l; (bl(7l(C) �n 

restitution to the HSUS (Exhibit 9).

• ••••
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SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to detennine if (bl(5l; (bl(7l(Cl knowingly 
facilitated and participated in dogfights at (b)(BJ; (b)(?)(CJ ·n (bl(BJ; (bl(7l(Cl OK, in which others from 
neighboring states participated. 

The investi ation determined that (b)(BJ; osted)�()�(; ogfights atfbl(BJ; (bl(?J(Cl lin b)(BJ; (b)(?J(CJ

OK, on (bl(BJ; (bl(7)(Cl d (b)(BJ; (bl(7l(C) e investigation also determined that (bl(BJ; (bl(7)(Cl 
was actively training and breeding pit bulls for the purpose of dog fighting. 

On b)(B); (b)(?)(CJ in United States District Court, Eastern District of Oklahoma/bl(B); (b)(?)(CJ 
OK )�()�\---, led guilty to b)(6) unt of Possessin an Animal for Participation in an Animal 
Fi tin Venture, and on b)(B); (b)(?)(Cl 

as sentenced to�ears probation, 
�\i�\ic, home detention, a �\i�\ic:, fine, and �\i�\i special assessment. 

This investigation was conducted jointly with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), the 
i�()�(;,..., �tate Highway Patrol, and the Oklahoma Highway Patrol. 

BACKGROUND 

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service 
(APHlS) is responsible for protecting and promoting U.S. agricultural health, administering the 
Animal Welfare Act, and carrying out wildlife damage management activities. The Animal 
Welfare Act provides APH1S with the ability to regulate minimum care of warm blooded animals 
used in research, bred for commercial sale, exhibited to the public, or commercially transported.
In addition, the law requires standards of animal care be established and enforced. 

On b)(B); (b)(?J(Cl information was received from the USDA, Office oflnspector General, 
(USDA-OIG), (bl(6l; (b)(?)(Cl thatl<b}(B); (b)(?)(C) lwas actively participating in a dog
fighting operation involving numerous individuals from several states. This information was

obtained as a result of undercov�r a ents b)(Bl; (bl(7l(C) ogfightsfbl(6J; (bl(7J<CJ 
hosted onfbl(6J; (b)(7J(C) land b)(6J; (b)(7J(Cl �------� 

7 U.S.C § 2156 POSSESSING AN ANIMAL FOR PARTICIPATION IN AN ANIMAL 
FIGHTING VENTURE 

Onfbl(B); (bl(7)(Cl la Federal search warrant was executed at b)(B); (b)(?)(Cl
�------------.,,-.,..,.,,.,.....,,...,..,==..,.., 

OK, in an effort to obtain and preserve evidence of an alleged dog rgring venture by (b)(B); (b)(?)(C)
Numerous dog fighting implements and documentation, as well as ��)< pit bulls were seized at the 
property. USDA-O1O relinquished the care and custody of the seized animals to the Humane 
Society of the United States, who then arranged for the placement of the animals in local shelters.

On b)(B); (b)(?)(CJ Exhibit 1) relinquished ownership of the seized animals to USDA-
OIG and the FBI, (b)(BJ; (bJ(?J(C) K. 
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On b)(6); (b)(?)(C) in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Oklahoma, (bl(5l: (b)(?)(C)
�/\�/:", as charged in a(�(\�(;r ount indictment (Exhibit 2) with Conspiracy, Sponsoring an 
Animal in an Animal Fighting Venture, and Possessing an Animal for Participation in an Animal 
Fighting Venture. 

On fbl(5); (b)(?)(C) lin said court �()�(b led guilty to count \�/\�/;r, f the indictment, 
Possessin an Animal for Participation in an An.imal Fightin Venture. On (b)(6l: (b)(?)(C)
b)(6) d (Exhib' 3) ffiil b . (b)(6) d . b)(6) h\/71,r, as sentence 1t tol'.fillyears pro ation, '""-,,;

,--
, ome etent1on, a ,.._,,_,_;,--, 

fi d b)(6); 'a] t me, an h\/7\/1'' spec1 assessmen . 
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DETAILS 

This survey investigation was initiated to capture time associated with potential dog 
figh . . . . . l(b)(6) I tmg mvest1gat1ons In ,,_,m:�, 

Information 
residents, but 

* * * * * 
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USDA OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 
iiiillllllll United States Department of Agriculture 

September 12, 2023 

Subject: Log No. 22-00075 

This letter responds to the January 21, 2022, Freedom oflnformation Act (FOIA)1 appeal to the 
Office of Inspector General (OIG) at the Department of Agriculture (USDA). On appeal, 
Inspector General Fong granted a portion of your appeal and remanded your request to FOIA 
staff for further processing. FOIA staff received the remanded request on February 28, 2022, 
and assigned it FOIA Log No. 22-00075. You requested copies of the final report, report of 
investigation (ROI), closing report, closing memo, closing letter, referral memo, referral letter 
and any other conclusory document regarding the USDA OIG investigations listed in your 
request. 

We are enclosing 24 pages of responsive records. Pursuant to FOIA, certain information has been 
redacted and withheld as it is exempt from release. Specifically, in accordance with 
5 U.S.C. § 552(b )(6) and (b )(7)(C), the names, signatures, initials, and other identifying information 
of individuals were withheld because release of this information could reasonably be expected to 
constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Exemption 6 protects information about 
individuals in personnel and medical files and similar files when the disclosure of such information 
would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Exemption 7(C) is limited to 
information compiled for law enforcement purposes, and protects personal information when 
disclosure could reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. 

We have enclosed an explanatory sheet ofFOIA exemption explanations. Please be advised that 
we have considered the foreseeable harm standard when reviewing records and applying FOIA 
exemptions. 

You have the right to appeal this decision by writing to the Inspector General, U.S. Department 
of Agriculture, 1400 Independence Avenue SW., Whitten Building, Suite 441-E, 
Washington, D.C. 20250-2308. Appeals must be postmarked or transmitted by email no later 
than 90 calendar days from the date of the adverse determination. The outside of the envelope 
should be clearly marked "FOIA APPEAL." 

For your information, Congress excluded three discrete categories of law enforcement and 
national security records from the requirements of the FOIA. See 5 U.S.C. 552(c) 
(2006 & Supp. IV 2010). This response is limited to those records that are subject to the 
requirements of the FOIA. This is a standard notification that is given to all our requesters and 
should not be taken as an indication that excluded records do, or do not, exist. 



Page 2 

You have the right to seek the assistance of the OIG FOIA Public Liaison. You can also seek 
dispute resolution services from the OIG FOIA Public Liaison or the Office of Government 
Information Services (OGIS). 

As part of the 2007 FOIA amendments, OGIS was created to offer mediation services to resolve 
disputes between FOIA requesters and Federal agencies as a non-exclusive alternative to 
litigation. Using OGIS' services does not affect your right to pursue litigation. If you are 
requesting access to your own records (which is considered a Privacy Act request), you should 
know that OGIS does not have the authority to handle requests made under the Privacy Act of 
1974. 

You may contact OGIS in any of the following ways: 

Office of Government Information Services 
National Archives and Records Administration 
{OGIS} 8601 Adelphi Road 
College Park, MD 20740-6001 
Phone: (202) 741-5770 
Fax: (202) 741-5769 
Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448 
E-mail: ogis@nara.gov 
Web: https://ogis.archives.gov 

For information about OIG, please refer to our Web site at http://www.usda.gov/oig/. Should 
you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact our office at 
(202) 720-5677. 

Sincerely, 

ALISON ~~~~~~~tcn:E~by 

DECKER ~;~~!~2~1-~~-2 

Alison Decker 
Assistant Counsel 

Enclosures: Exemptions sheet/documents 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was initiated through cooperation between several federal, state and local 
agencies to investigate criminal violations of the Animal Welfare Act. Criminal prosecutions 
related to investi ative o erations were ursued by the United States Attorne 's Office in the 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) nd county courts throughout b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

Agency personnel partnered with federal task force initiatives such as the Violent Crimes Task 
Force (VCTF) and the Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) to conduct 
investigative operations into suspected animal fighting operations. The investigations disclosed 
widespread Animal Welfare Act violations whereby individuals were engaged in organizing 
underground dog fighting or cock fighting operations that included illegal gambling and narcotics 
trafficking. Items seized in the course of investigation included narcotics, U.S. Currency, firearms, 
and vehicles. Violations of the Animal Welfare Act included the conspiracy to commit animal 
fighting; buying, selling, and possessing of fighting dogs; the manufacture, distribution, and 
possession of dog fighting paraphernalia; and attending an animal fighting venture. 

This survey initiative has been operational since )~()~(,r, and has resulted in three spin-off 
investigations. Task force operations to date have yielded 30 indictments, 82 arrests, 15 search 
warrants, and numerous convictions. Additional State and Federal prosecution of defendants 
identified through task force operations is ongoing and will be reported under their respective case 
numbers. 

The following spin-off cases were opened as a result of this investigation: 

Target or Kennel Name Case Number Location CaseTvoe 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) CH-3330-0031 (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) Cock Fighting 

Dog Fighting 
CH-3330-0033 

Dog Fighting 
CH-3330-0036 

Investigation of the above referenced cases will continue under their respective case numbers, and 
future Animal Welfare Act investigative activities will be reported under the respective case 
number. 

***** 
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Ch-3330-0034 

A survey investigation was opened in .... l(b....,)( ..... 5l_; (...,bl,....(7,....l(C_l---.----=---,-------~~o address 
allegations of animal fighting and animal welfare violations. 

fb)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

Th. k d . . I . h h (bH5l 1s case was wor e Jomt y wit t e lh \17 11r.1 

The following individual was investigate 
ounty Sheriffs OfficePl(5l; (b)(?)(C) 

Address 

rb )(6 ); (b )(7)(G) r )(6), (b )(7)(C) 

USDAOIG 
Case Number 

Ch-3330-0035 

The results of t~e above investigation were reported under the corresponding case 
number. 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

This case was worked · ointl with (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) The following kennel was investigated: 

Address Summary 

fb)(6); (b)(7)(C) l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

The United States Attorney's Office~(bl(5l; (b)(?)(Cl 
prosecution. 

* * * * * 

- I -
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Ch-3330-0037 

SYNOPSIS 

This joint investigation was initiated based u on a referral from the High Intensity Drug Trafficking 
Areas (HIDTA) Task Force during ,~/\~/(,_, and involved a narcotics traffickin and animal 
fighting operation jn the Northern District of Ohio. Our efforts focused on (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) n 
individual identified by HIDT A personnel as possibly engaged in animal fighting. 

SPONSORING AND EXHIBITING ANIMALS IN 
ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE - 7 U.S.C. § 2156 {a){l) 

POSSESSING AND TRAtNING ANIMALS FOR 
ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURES - 7 U.S.C. § 2156 (b) 

Otj(b)(B); (b)(l )(C) ~SDA~OIG personnel assistedrb)(B); (b)(l )(C) ~IOTA with the execution of federal 
search warrants issued by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio in 

rb)(B); (b)(l )(C) I Ohio. The search warrant operation conducted in l(b)(B); (b)(l )(C) !Ohio 
was executed by FBI SWAT personnel, and broke up an animal fi ht in rogress involving 
roosters. Additionally, five search warrants were executed in b)(B); (b)(?)(C) hio, seeking evidence of 
animal fighting, narcotics, money laundering and other criminal violations. USDA-OIG personnel 
assisted with the execution of the search warrant at the r ster fi inl<b)(B); (b)(?)(C) bhio as well as 
fbl(B) !locations inl(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) phio. The ,~1\~1~ ocations in (b)(B); (b)(l )(C) hio, were used by the subjects 
of this investigation to raise and train roosters for fighting. USDA-APHIS-Wildlife Services and 
Ohio Department of Agriculture personnel assisted with the handling of the roosters during warrant 
operations. 

l(b )(6); (b )(7)(C) I . . 
On ,__ __ _,=--=---,,--=,---,---'appeared for an Arraignment and Change of Plea Hearing 
pursuant to an Information filed on (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) Exhibit I) in the United States District Court for 
the Northern District of Ohio. b)(B); (b)(7)(C) eaded guilty to the Information, waived 
Indictment, and signed a Plea Agreement. The Information contained )~/)~/; ounts of Money 
Laundering, 18 USC 1956 a (3)(8) )~()~(1 count of Operating an Unlicensed Money Transmitting 
Business, 18 USC 1960; ~/\~/; ounts of Sponsoring and Exhibiting Animals in Animal Fighting 
Venture, 7 USC 2156(a)(l) and l(b)(Blfounts of Possessing and Training Animals for Animal Fighting 
Ventures, 7 USC 2156(b). 

On b)(B); (b)(l )(C) was sentenced (Exhibit 2 to (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) incarceration, 

followed by \~/\~/~,_ ears of supervised release. Additionally, )~()~(ir, as ordered to pay a )~()~(in 
fine ~(~(1r, special assessment, and forfeiture in the amount of$ (b)(B); (b)(7)(C) 

This case was prosecuted by the United States Attorney's Office, Northern District of Ohio. 
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HY-3330-0045 
SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to detennine if animal fighting was occurring in the state of 
Delaware, specifically inl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) !county and I\?~\~!: tounty. As a result, the U.S. De artment 
of A iculture USDA , Office of Inspector General (OIG) began an investigation into b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) ho operated a dog fighting venture that went by the name b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) in(~/\~/;,. .. ounty, Delaware. USDA, OIG's case stemmed from a Delaware State 
Police (DSP) and Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), and Delaware Animal and Care 
Control (DACC). 

The investi ation disclosed that between (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) roperty located at 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) which served as b)(6); (b)(7)(C) '------------------,---bull dogs in the animal fighting venture and was used for conducting dog fights. (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
trained and bred pit bulls for participation in dog fighting competitions; traveled to other 
locations in interstate commerce to participate in dog fights; and sponsored and exhibited dogs in 
animal fighting competitions in interstate commerce by transporting and causing the 
transportation of dogs across state lines. 

DETAILS 

On b)(5); (b)(?)(C) SP and DEA executed a search warrant atl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) residence for a 
\~/\~);,..., violation. While at the residence, DSP observed a large number of dogs l(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
the property and contacted DACC officers. DSP and DACC contacted USDA, OIG (OIG) for 
assistance. DACC responded to the property, observed evidence of animal neglect and dog 
fighting, and obtained a search warrant related to dog fighting. 

Scattered throughout thel<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) !house, DACC investigators found adult American 
Pit Bull Terriers. includinvKb)(6 buccies.l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I In the 
~()~;:!of the property wasf bH5>; (b)(?)(C) !within which DACC foundl(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); I for various dogs. f t_ \1"7\lr" \ 

In th ert , DACC officers found a (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) e device in 
whic 

with a (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

D . h f h. . . . h 1'b)(6) bE P 1· 0 (SPD) 1 urmg t e course o t 1s mvest1gat1on, t er. --- ·'·- · o ice e artmcnt was a so 
conductin a se arate investigation into (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) or a 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) llegation. Durin the SPD investigation, (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) were 
obtained b)(6); (b)(7)(C) SPD realized that (b)(6); 

• '-----------------,-----' /h\(7\/f:\ 
- 1 -
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f b)(B); (b)(?)(C) I related to animal fi 
accordance with the Delaware Attorney General's Office made those \~/\~t .. , 
USDA, OIG for review. 

corroborated with (b)(6); 
f h \17 \tr'\ 

admitting to the behavior during interviews. 

JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

HY-3330-0045 

hting. SPD in 

available to 

This case was accepted for prosecution by the U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of 
Delaware. 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) b)(6); (b)(7)(C) in violation of Kb)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(B); (b)(?)(C) knowingly sponsoring and exhibiting an animal fighting venture in 
violation of7 U.S.C. § 2156(a)(l); and buying or transporting an animal for the purpose of 
participating in an animal fighting venture in violation of7 U.S.C. § 2156(b) (Exhibit I). 

In (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

followed by (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

(Exhibit 2). 

as convicted and sentenced to a total orfbl(5); (b)(?)(C) !imprisonment to be 
upervised release, and ordered to pay a special assessment of ,~!~~/;,. .. , 
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HY-3330-0050 

SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation was initiated in response to a request from the ._l(b_l(_5>_; (b_H_7>_(c_l _____ __J 

b)(5); (b)(?)(C) to assist them with an investigation into the alleged 

b)(6); (b)(?)(C) and organized cock fighting taking place in the !~\~\icl ounty, 
Virginia area. 

Th
. . . . l d th (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
1s mvestt ation revea e at 

of ~;)~;;.,, Virginia, were engaged in the breeding 
~----------------' 
and selling of roosters to be used in animal fighting ventures, as well as fbH5); (b)(?)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(?)(C) !These 
activities were carried out in a conspiracy with l(bl(5); (b)(?)(C) I 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) lin ~b)(6); (b)(7)(C) loperated by 
b}(6); (b)(7)(C) 

land 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I Betweenl(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I and i(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I 
b )(6); (b )(?)(Cl I were 
~------------------------------------' 
arrested, indicted, convicted, and sentenced as a result of this investigation. 

b)(5); (b)(?)(C) as interviewed and admitted t b)(5); (b)(?)(C) for the purposes of holding 
L------1T.'."v;~~~--'---'----------...L-------__J 
cock fights. (bl(5l; (b)(?)(C) to attend these fights, to become 
b)(6); (b)(?)(C) admitted that 

people fought birds there in order lo win money. 1~11~1; lso admitted (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 1ghting pit. 
l;;::-;;;"'1-----~~-~~--------------------__J b)(5 admitted to b)(6l; (b)(?)(C) 

~----..__a_s interviewed and admitted tol(b)(5); (b}(?)(C) 
cock fights. b)(5); dmitted to b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
t b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

b)(5); (b)(? c interviewed and admitted to b}(5); (b)(?)(C) 
cock fi dmitted to (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(6); (b) 

b}(5); (b)(?)(C) as interviewed and admitted to b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

ror the purposes of holding 
admitted 

or the purposes of holding 

ock 
fighting b)(5l; (b)(?)(C) admitted to (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

b)(5); ht tt d h\mrr:, 1g a en ees. 

~fb_l<5_l;_<b_><_7l_cc_l_~~eclined to be interviewed during this investigation. 

This matter was rosecuted b the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of 
Virginia (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

- 1 -



rb)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

ANIMAL FIGHTING - 7 U.S.C. § 2156 

CONSPIRACY - 18 U.S.C. § 371 

ILLEGAL GAMBLING - 18 U.S.C. § 1955 

Exhibit 1 are pertinent excerpts from b)(5); (b)(?)(C); (b)(?)(D) re ardin this investi ation which 
summarizes the undercover o erations in which Cbl(6); Cb)(?)(C); (b)(?)(D) 
b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(?)(D) iscussed or engaged in animal 

fighting and/or illegal gambling activities. 

During this investigatioJ~~-lC_
5
>_; Cb_l<_

7
>_cc_J _____________________ ___, 

l<bJC5); (b)(?)(C) t-vere arrested and questioned (Exhibit 2). The results of these efforts are summarized 

below. 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) admitted that people fought birds 

there in order to win money (b)(6); admitted that (b)C6); (b)(?)(C) 
/h\/7\/ 

on the property and Cb)C5); (b)C7JCC) of the fighting pit. 

~dmitted to._b_l<5_l;_Cb_l<_7l_<c_J _______________ __, 

(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) as arrested a~(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) ~aivedl:b)(5) rights and was interviewed. i~~i~~( 
admitted to Cb)C5l; CblC7lCC) or the purposes of holding cock fights. ~\/~\; dmitted to 

(b)(6); (b)C?JCCJ dmitted to b)(6); Cb)(?JCCJ 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) as arrested b)(5); (b)(?)(C) aived ghts and was interviewed. 

admitted to b)C5); Cb)(?)(C) for the purposes of holding cock fights dmitted to 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(blC5l; (blC7lCC) as arrested at (blC5l; (b)(?)CC) ghts and was interviewed. l(7l( 
admitted to b)(5); Cb)(?)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) admitted to Cb)C5); (b)(?)(C) 

~~~ fi~ .__ _____________________________ ___,J 

attendees. 

~ICb_)C6_J;_Cb_lC_7l(_c_J -~~as arrested a{b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ~eclined to be interviewed. 

On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

b)(5); (b)(?)(C) ere indicted (Exhibit 3) by a federal grand jury in the Western District of Virginia 

- 2 -



and charged with t>(
6
) riminal violations related to animal fighting and o erating an illegal 

gambling enterprise b)<5>; (b)(7)(C) as also indicted onfb>(5>lcount of .... b_l(5_>;_(b_l(7_l_(c_> ____ ...J 

Exhibit 4 contains the court records documenting the prosecutive actions in this matter, which 
are summarized below. 

l(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) plead guilty. b)(5); as sentenced to~onths in prison, placed o~ears 

of supervised release, fined ~~~~ir, in Special Assessments, ordered to forfeit all items 

seized froml:b>(
5
>~ome, and had a money judgment imposed against ~~~~~~< or an additional 

(b)(6); (b)(7}(C) ... ·-· 

(b)(5); (b)(?}(C) lead guilty. E5,vas sentenced to~onths andm}fay in prison, placed 

o (~)( ears of supervised release, fined ~~l(c n Special Assessments, ordered to forfeit all 

items seized from h~~t ome, and had a money judgment imposed against (b~~i for an 
additional b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

l(b)(5); (b)(7)(C) plead guilty. ib~~); as sentenced to IDnonths in prison, placed onm,ears 

of supervised release, fined ;~((5); ·n Special Assessments, ordered to forfeit the 
(bX5l; (b)(?)(C) n cash seized from (bl(5l ome, and had a money judgment imposed against 

~~~~~~( for an additiona (b)(5); (b)(7)(C) hich was to be paid jointly or severally. 

as convicted via jury trial b~~~c:1 as subsequently sentenced to~onths 

in prison; bl( ears of supervised release; fined )~\j~>ir, in Special Assessments; ordered to 
forfeit the bJ(5l; (b)(?)(C) in cash seized from b)(5) ome; and, was ordered to pay, jointly or 
severally wit b)(5l co-defendants, an additional b)(5>; (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(5l; (b)(?)(Cl lead guilty and was sentenced to ~onths in prison, placed onffl,-ears of 

supervised release, fined <b~~~; 1 n Special Assessments, ordered to forfeit the 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) n cash seized from ~(i~(; ome, and had money judgment imposed against 

b~~~ or an additiona~b)(5l; (b)(7)(C) r7hich was to be paid jointly or severally. 

PROSECUTIVE DETERMINATION 

This case was prosecuted by the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of 
VirginiaJ(bl(5l; (b)(7)(C) I 

* • * • 
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ATTN OF: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

Northeast Region 
r (6); (b)(7)(C) 

l(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

HY-3330-0055 

Deputy Administrator 
Marketing and Regulatory Programs 
Business Services 
Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service 

BETHANNE M. DINKINS l(b)(6) 

Special Agent- in-Charge 
for Investigations 

~-------------~ 
.... rb_l<_6>_; <_bl_<7_><_c _) ________________ _,~ Animal Welfare Violations 

The purpose of this memorandwn is to inform you of our decision to close the above-referenced 
investigation, initiated in fb)(6); (b)(7)(C) I In cooperation with thdb)(5); (b)(l )(C) !Police Department, 
Animal Cruelty Division, and the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), Environment and Natural Resources 
Division (ENRD), the investigation was initiated to investigate possible violations of the Animal Welfare 
Act. 

The investigation initially identified (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) s possibly 
involved in the breeding and training of dogs for the purposes of fighting within the b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
After extensive records reviews interviews, and operations, investigative efforts failed to show 
knowledge, on the part of ~\i~\ic that these violations were ongoing. As such, DOJ, ENRD declined to 
prosecute this matter. 

If additional information is required. lease contact Christopher Robinson, Assistant Special Agent-in-
Charge, atl(b)(6) jor me at~b-)(_6> ____ ~ 

Cc: 
Assistant Inspector General for Investigations, OIG 
File 
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HY-3330-0057 

SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to determine if fbl(5); (b)(?)(C) ~as engaged in 
animal fighting, the breeding and selling of dogs for the purpose of dog fighting, and engaged in 
acts of animal cruelty. 

The investigation revealed that (b)(5); (b}(?)(C) acilitated the mauling of a (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) dog by a pit 
bull-style dog inj<b}(5>possession (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) this act and b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ........., __ ...,,.,--...,........,_---,-_ ____, 

in order to increase the sale value of the pit bull-style dog by representing it as a fighting dog. 
FurthermoreJ<b)(5); (b)(?)(C) ~ngaged in conversations with an undercover police officer to 
participate in an organized dog fight. 

DETAILS 

Onl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) la detective with th~(b)(B); (b)(?)(C) ~ounty Police Department ~b)(6 PD 
contacted the reporting agent (RA) and provided the following information regarding b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
as well as requesting the assistance of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Office of 
Inspector General (OIG) with the~PD investigation: 

D rin the month of b)(5l, (b)(?)(C) was contacted by an anonymous source in reference 
(b)(?)(C) trainin essive and fi ht. The source directed 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) )(7)(C) 

ccessed the b)(6); (b)(7)(C) b}(6); (b}(7)(C) 

dogs, and photos of a ositivel identified (b}(6); (b}(?)( ; b)(?)(C) 
Police Department w )(C) ith b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

In b}(6); (b)(7)(C) he (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) is a small it 
bull st le b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 0 . (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)( As (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) he small it bull style dog is 
observed (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) og, and then (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) og. The pit 
bull style dog is then b)(6); (b)(7)(C) og. The pit 

~--,,,....,...,.,,.,........,,...,....,,,.,..,.,,..,....-----,,--,--....,.,,..,=:--::--:-:,=.,....---~~--~-, 
bull style dog can be seen b)(6); (b)(7)(C) dog (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) ,...._ ______ ____, 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C); (b)(7)(D) 

On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) PD and USDA OIG executed a search warrant at the residence of 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) In addition/bl(5); (b)(?)(C) ~~s interviewed and made the following statements: 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) the (b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

-1-



HY-3330-0057 

Agent's Note: fbl(5); (b)(?)(C) lis the name of the pit bull-style dogl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 

1 ..... (b_)<6_);_<b_)<?_)<C_l ______ ~~ogj<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) I threw the do~.__(b_H6_l;_<b_)U_l<_Cl ___ ____. 
know what happened to it. 

and stated b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

fbH5); (b)(?)(C) ~ as subsequently arrested on probable cause byl<b)(6 CPD. 

JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

This case was accepted for prosecution by the State's Attorney's Office forl<b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
County. 

On 
(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

as charged in Circuit Court offbl(6); (b)(?)(C) ~ounty with ~()~(i 
crim._1_n_a~. v_1_0,_a~t1_o_n_s~m-c-ru~ m- g----,,og fighting, possessing or training a dog for dog fighting, 
possession of dog fighting implements, aggravated animal cruelty, animal cruelty, and dog 
fighting. 

pled guilty in Circuit Court of fbl(5); (b)(?)(C) ~ounty to 
~--r-------:-----:-----:-:----------:-~ 
b)(~); _ ounts including aggravated animal cruelty, dog fighting, possessing or training a dog 
for dog fighting, and possession of dog fighting implements. 

rb)(5); (b)(?)(C) lwas sentenced to ~~~~~ir ears in prison to be followed b 
1 d d d (b)(6) · · re ease, an was or ere to pay ,._, ,-,,;,,_ n restltut10n. 

* * * * * 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to determine if! ~(b_)<5_l;_<b_)<_7l_<c_) _______ ~~ississippi 
actively engaged in an animal fighting venture. 

The investigation establishedrb)(5); (b)(?)(C) fas actively engaged in an animal fighting venture. 
The animal fighting venture included training and breeding pit bulls for the purpose of dog 
fighting, and organized gambling. 

This investi~_:>n was conducted jointly with the /~\i~\icl 
Department ~SD). 

BACKGROUND 

ounty, Mississippi Sheriffs 

On or about (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) he~SD conducted a State search warrant and evidence was 
seized indicatin (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) red and trained pit bulls for the purpose organized dog 
fighting. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Office of Inspector General, 
(OIG) was contacted by the~SD who requested assistance with the investigation. 

ANIMAL FIGHTING VENTURE - 7 U.S.C. § 2156(b} 

From b)(5); (b)(?)(C) hroughfbl(5); (b)(?)(C) ~he Reportin A ent 

evidence obtained b the ? SD via the search warrant served on (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
reviewed b)(5); (b)(?)(C) cellular tele hone data hotographs, an mterv1ews. T 1e evidence 
was reviewed in order to detem1ine if b)(5); (b)(?)(C) as actively engaged in an animal fighting 
venture. 

On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of 
Mississippi (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) as charged via a Bill of Information with~b)(6) !count of violating 7 
U.S.C. § 2156(b) (Exhibit 1). 

0 (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) · n said courtJ(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) bled guilty (Exhibit 2) and on l(bl(5); (b)(?)(C) !was 

sentenced t (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) robation, ordered to pay a ~1\~/;f"', ne, and a ~;i~;; special assessment 
(Exhibit 3). 

***** 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investi ation was conducted to determine if b)(B); (bl(7l(Cl 
rganized an animal 

so bl( could b)(B); (bl(7l(Cl 
\ · .__ ________ _, '----------------------' 

b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

dd. . l . . . d db h (b)(B); Sh 'ff D d' d An a 1t1ona mveshgahon con ucte t e b 1 c ounty en s epartment 1scovere a 
cock-fighting venture in progress on (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) ubsequent investi ation by the United 
States Department of Agriculture Office of Ins ector General and the )~i)~iir, ounty Sheriffs 
Department revealed that b)(B); (b)(?)(C) was the organizer of the event. 

This case was prosecuted by the United States Attorney's Office, District ofldaho, and the 
b)(6); p 
himir., ounty rosecutor. 

0 (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) count od~()~(ir, 
~b-)(6 ..... );-(b-)(=1)~(c-)-------~~in- v-io-la- t-io_n_o~~-....._~=--__,.__ .................. _ ___.._ __ ~ 
1---~~~------~--' .,__--~~ ~~~-------' 
b)(6); (b)(7)(Cl was sentenced to time served (Exhibit I) . .__ _________ _, 

od<b)(B); (b)(?)(C) bled guilty to ~(~~(; isdemeanor count of 
Exhibition of Cockfights in violation of Idaho Criminal Code 25-3 506.~b)(B); (b)(?)(C) I 
rb)(B); (b)(?)(C) lwas sentenced to b)(6); ime served and a (b)(B); me (Exhibit 2). 

h\17 \tr\ t h \17 \fr 
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Te-3330-21 

SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to determine ifl(bH5); (b)(?)(C) ~owingly kept a place for 
the participation in and observation of animal fighting, sponsored an illegal gambling business, 
and participated in an animal fighting venture, in l(b)\~);. .... !Texas, located inl\~1\~1:~, ~ounty 
Texas. 

The investigation determined tha b)(5); (b)(?)(C) perated an illegal gambling and gamecock fighting 
venue located on~roperty in (b)(~); _ ounty Texas 

This investi ation was conducted jointly with the )~!\~t .. , County Special Crimes Unit ~SCU); 
b)(5); (b)(?)(C) exas Police Department@>D); Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS), Texas 
Rangers, and Air Wing Division; Humane Society of the United States (HSUS), Washington, 
D.C.; and the Texas Department of Family Services (DFS). 

BACKGROUND 

On or aboutl(b)(5); (b)(?)(C) I the Reporting Agent (RA) was contacted by the~SCU, who 
requested the assistance of United States Department of Agriculture (USDA Office of Inspector 
General (OIG regardin a Jar e-scale gamecock fl htin o eration in ~))~(;. ... , exas. 
Accordin to (? SCU, ,~>(5); as facilitating a ,~1\~L, amecock fighting and gambling 
venue on b)(6 roperty i 1~11~);1"', ounty Texas. Additionally )~! SCU surveillance efforts 
revealed t at over approximately ~i)~i; articipants and spectators were attending these animal 
fighting events. 

TEXAS PENAL CODE§ 42.09(6) CRUELTY TO ANIMALS 

On b)(5>; (b)(?)(C) DA-010,~SCU, DPS,~D, HSUS and DFS executed a State Search 
Warrant o bH5>; (b)(?)(C) roperty, during the scheduled time of an ongoing animal fighting 
venue. During the warrant, evidence of a amecock fl htin o eration to include documents, 
fightin araphernalia, b)(6); (b)(?)(C) roosters 
an ,~/\~/;,~, ere seized. Other items of evidence seized included an (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
(b )(6); (b )(7)(C) nd 

in cash. On scene, b)(6> individuals were arrested and char ed with a (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
""-"-'-"'-'-'--' 

amblin violation. The arrests included a sus ect b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) In addition to the arrests, 
a roximately b)(6); (b)(?)(C) ere on the property and j<b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) f . 

The RA determined that from (b)(5>; (b)(?)(C) alll(b)(5) !individuals pleaded guilty to the 
gambling violations and (b)(5>; (b)(?)(C) in fines were collected by the Justice of the Peace, Precinct 
\~1\~L .. , County Texas. On (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) fl tin roosters were euthanized by USDA, 
APHIS Veterinary Services under Court Order (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) ounty Texas. 

0 b)(5>; (b)(?)(C) n Ass· ·.====a,,,,.=.:.; omeyJ\b)\~>;_ Texas filed (b)(5); (b)(?)(C) 
(b)(6); .... Bills of Information i Court char b)(?)(C) 
(b)(6); (b)(7)(C) 

-2 -
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b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

(b)(6); ~, jw1th Conspiracy to Commit Cruelty to Livestock Animals (Exhibit 1 ). 

On i<b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 

(b)(6); (b)(?)(C) 
I in the b)(B) Judicial District Court ~~)~~;r, as indicted f◄ • 

1ctment or (b)(6); (b)(?)(C) as dismissed (Exhibit 3). 
xhibit 2). On (b)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

On b)(B); (b)(?)(C) leaded guilty to the Information and was sentenced torb)(B); (b)(?)(C) 

robation and ordered to pay ~()~(ir me (Exhibit 4). On!<b)(B); (b)(?)(C) ~he Information charging 
b)(6); (b)(?)(C) as dismissed (Exhibit 5). Legal action continues at this time. 

* * * * * 
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